
MEMORANDUM 

To: Board of Trustees 
Twin Falls School District 411  

From:  Eva Craner, Director of Public Relations 
Re:  Policy Updates   
Date: June 12, 2023 

First Reading: 
ISBA Updates: 

1315 District Planning 
1405 School Board Use of E-Mail, Social Media, and District-Provided Electronic Devices 
3030 Part-time Attendance and Dual Enrollment 
3281 Gender Identity and Sexual Orientation 
3340 Corrective Actions and Discipline 
3340P Corrective Action and Discipline 
3440 Student Fees, Fines and Charges/Return of Property 
5325 Employee Use of Social Media Sites, Including Personal Sites 
9605 Facilities Separated by Sex 

Administrative Updates: 
3740P Student Expulsion-Denial of Enrollment 

Second Reading: 
Administrative Updates: 

2700P Graduation Requirements 
3285 Relationship Abuse and Sexual Assault Prevention and Response 
3295 Hazing, Harassment, Intimidation, Bullying, and Cyber Bullying 
3305 Prohibition of Tobacco Possession and Use DELETE 
3321 Student Drug, Alcohol, and Tobacco Use 
3321P Student Drug, Alcohol, and Tobacco Use DELETE 
3580 Relations with Non-Custodial Parents 
5424 Absence Without Pay for Non-Certified Employees 
7500 New Fees or Increase of Fees 



 
 
POLICY TITLE: 

 
District Planning 
 

 
POLICY NO: 1315   

PAGE 1 of 3 
 

 

 1315-1 (ISBA 2015 UPDATE) 

Each year, the Board of Trustees shall create a collaborative continuous improvement plan 
designed to improve student achievement in the District, assess and prioritize needs, and measure 
outcomes.   
 
The Board shall work with the Superintendent to engage students, parents, teachers, 
administrators, and community members as appropriate in the planning process. 
 
The annual continuous improvement plan shall: 
 

1. Be data driven, specifically in student outcomes, use multiple measures, and shall 
include, but not be limited to, analysis of demographic data, student achievement and 
growth data, graduation rates, and college and career readiness;  
 

2. Set clear and measurable benchmarks based on student outcomes. At minimum the Board 
shall established benchmarks for: 
a. Career and College Readiness:  The number and percentage of students meeting the 

college ready benchmark in mathematics and English Language Arts on a state 
recognized college entrance exam. Improvement shall be measured by year-over-
year growth in the percentage of students meeting the college readiness benchmark. 
 

b. High School Readiness:  The number and percentage of students meeting proficient 
or advanced on the 8th grade Idaho Standards Achievement Test in mathematics and 
English language usage.  Improvement shall be measured by year-over-year growth 
in the percentage of students scoring proficient or advanced. 
 

c. 7th Grade Readiness:  The number and percentage of students meeting proficient or 
advanced on the 6th grade Idaho Standards Achievement Test in mathematics and 
English language usage.  Improvement shall be measured by year-over-year growth 
in the percentage of students scoring proficient or advanced. 
 

d. 4th Grade Reading Readiness:  The number and percentage of students reading at 
grade level on the spring 3rd grade statewide reading assessment.  Improvement 
shall be measured by year-over-year growth in the percentage of students scoring at 
grade level. 
 

e. 3rd Grade Reading Readiness:  The number and percentage of students reading at 
grade level on the spring 2nd grade statewide reading assessment.  Improvement 
shall be measured by year-over-year growth in the percentage of students scoring at 
grade level. 
 

f. 2nd Grade Reading Readiness:  The number and percentage of students reading at 
grade level on the spring 1st grade statewide reading assessment.  Improvement shall 



 
 

 1315-2 (ISBA 2015 UPDATE) 

be measured by year-over-year growth in the percentage of students scoring at grade 
level. 

 
g. 1st Grade Reading Readiness:  The number and percentage of students reading at 

grade level on the spring kindergarten statewide reading assessment.  Improvement 
shall be measured by year-over-year growth in the percentage of students scoring at 
grade level; 

 
3. Include a clearly developed and articulated vision and mission;  

 
4. Include key indicators for monitoring performance;  

 
5.  
6. . These goals and targets shall be based on comparisons between similar cohorts of 

students in similar schools and school districts; 
 

7. Include, as applicable to the grade ranges served, trajectory growth targets toward literacy 
proficiency; 
 

8. Include, as applicable to the grade ranges served, college and career advising and 
mentoring goals and how progress toward those outcomes will be measured; 
 

9. Include the individual staff performance on each of the performance criteria defined in 
33-1001, Idaho Code, including measurable student achievement, and student success 
indicator targets, and the percentage of students meeting those targets. Data will be 
aggregated by grade range, subject, or performance indicator as determined by Idaho’s 
Commission for Education Excellence through the office of the State Board of Education; 
and 

10. Include, at a minimum, the student achievement and growth metrics for the state 
accountability framework; and 

 
11. Include a report of progress toward the previous year’s improvement goals. 

 
Multiple measures shall be used to determine student readiness and improvement. At a 
minimum, the Board shall set a benchmark for each of the following metrics: 
 

1. Career and College Readiness: The percentage of students meeting the four-year cohort 
graduation rate. The Board may also set a benchmark for the five-year cohort graduation 
rate and the percentage of students who meet the college ready benchmark on the college 
entrance exam.  Improvement shall be measured by year over year growth in the 
percentage of students meeting the college and career ready performance metric. 
 

2. College and Career Advising: The percentage of students meeting the District’s chosen 
performance metric for college and career advising. Improvement shall be measured by 
year over year growth in percentage of students meeting the performance metric. 
 



 
 

 1315-3 (ISBA 2015 UPDATE) 

3. High School Readiness: The percentage of students meeting proficient or advanced on 
the grade 8 Idaho Standards Achievement Test in mathematics and English language arts 
as well as percentage of students who make adequate growth on the grade 8 Idaho 
Standards Achievement Test in mathematics and English language arts. Improvement 
shall be measured by year over year growth in the percentage of students scoring 
proficient or advanced and making adequate growth. 
 

4. Grade 7 Readiness: The percentage of students meeting proficient or advanced on the 
grade 6 Idaho Standards Achievement Test in mathematics and English language arts as 
well as percentage of students who make adequate growth on the grade 6 grade Idaho 
Standards Achievement Test in mathematics and English language arts. Improvement 
shall be measured by year over year growth in the percentage of students scoring 
proficient or advanced and making adequate growth. 
 

5. Grade 5 Reading Readiness: The percentage of students meeting proficient or advanced 
on the grade 4 Idaho Standards Achievement Test in English language arts as well as 
percentage of students who make adequate growth on the grade 4 Idaho Standards 
Achievement Test in English language arts. Improvement shall be measured by year over 
year growth in the percentage of students scoring proficient or advanced and making 
adequate growth. 
 

6. Grade 4 Reading Readiness: The percentage of students reading at grade level on the 
grade 3 spring Idaho Reading Indicator. Improvement shall be measured by year over 
year growth in the percentage of students scoring at grade level. 
 

7. Grade 3 Reading Readiness: The percentage of students reading at grade level on the 
grade 2 spring Idaho Reading Indicator. Improvement shall be measured by year over 
year growth in the percentage of students scoring at grade level. 
 

8. Grade 2 Reading Readiness: The percentage of students reading at grade level on the 
grade 1 spring Idaho Reading Indicator. Improvement shall be measured by year over 
year growth in the percentage of students scoring at grade level. 
 

9. Grade 1 Reading Readiness: The percentage of students reading at grade level on the 
kindergarten spring Idaho Reading Indicator. Improvement shall be measured by year 
over year growth in the percentage of students scoring at grade level. 
 

10. Staff Performance: The percentage of students taught by staff the indicated grade/grade 
band and subject group that meet measurable student achievement targets or success 
indicators on the assessment tool used for evaluation.  

 
The Board may use the following assessment tools for measuring student achievement: 
 

1. Idaho Standards Achievement Test (ISAT), including interim ISAT assessments; 
2. Student learning objectives; 
3. Teacher-constructed assessments of student growth; 



 
 

 1315-4 (ISBA 2015 UPDATE) 

4. Pre and post tests, including District-adopted tests; 
5. Performance-based assessments; 
6. Idaho Reading Indicator, which is a required assessment tool for applicable staff; 
7. College entrance exams or preliminary college entrance exams such as PSAT, SAT, 

PACT, and ACT; 
8. Advanced placement exams; 
9. Career technical exams; 
10. The number of business or industry certificates or credentials earned by students in an 

approved career technical education program; 
11. The number of students completing career technical education capstone courses; and 
12. The number of students enrolled in career technical education courses that are part of a 

program that culminates with business or industry certificates or credentials.  
 
The Board may use the following for measuring student success indicators:  
 

1. Quantifiable goals stated in a student’s 504 plan or individualized education plan; 
2. Quantifiable goals stated in a student’s behavior improvement plan; 
3. School- or District-identified measurable student objectives for a specified student group 

or population; 
4. The percentage of students who create student learning plans in grade 8 or who annually 

update their student learning plans thereafter; and 
5. The percentage of students who satisfactorily complete one or more Advanced 

Opportunities options as identified in IC 33-4602 or who earn business or industry 
certificates or credentials. This indicator shall be one of the required indicators for 
applicable staff. 

 
 
The Board may engage in planning training to assist in the process and the development of the 
plan.  Qualified planning training may be reimbursable by the State through the process outlined 
in Idaho State Board of Education rule.  
 
The Board shall continuously monitor progress towards the targets for student outcomes included 
in the plan by using relevant data to measure growth.  Such progress shall be included in the 
Board’s annual evaluation of the Superintendent.  
 
The District plan shall be made available to the public by being posted on the District’s website.  
The plan must be reviewed, updated annually, and posted, and submitted to the Office of the 
Board of Education no later than October 1 each year. 
 

♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ 
 
Cross Reference: 1645 Board Development Opportunities 
   4130 Public Access to District Website 
 
Legal Reference: I.C. § 33-320 Continuous Improvement Plans and Training 
 I.C. § 33-1001  



 
 

 1315-5 (ISBA 2015 UPDATE) 

   IDAPA 08.02.01.801 Planning and Training 
 
Policy History: 
ADOPTED: 8/11/14 
ISBA 
REVISED: 12/13/21 



 
 
POLICY TITLE: 

 
School Board Use of Electronic Mail and 
Social Media, and District-Provided 
Electronic Devices 

 
POLICY NO: 1405   

PAGE 1 of 1 
 

 

 1405-1 (ISBA 2012) 

 
Use of electronic mail (e-mail) by members of the Board will conform to the same standards of 
judgment, propriety, and ethics as other forms of school Board-related communication.  Board 
members will comply with the following guidelines when using e-mail in the conduct of Board 
responsibilities: 
 
1. The Board will not use e-mail, communications via social media, or other electronic 

communications as a substitute for deliberations or voting at Board meetings or for other 
communications or business properly confined to Board meetings. 

 
2. Board members will be aware that e-mail and e-mail attachments received or prepared for 

use in Board business or containing information relating to Board business (regardless of 
whether sent or received on a school owned computer or personally owned computer) 
may be regarded as public records,which ; these communications may be inspected by 
any person upon request, unless otherwise made confidential by law. Additionally, if a 
Board Member is utilizing a school-owned technology device for personal purposes, such 
communications may also be subject to production in a public records request. 

 
3. Board members will note that individual postings made to social media sites should be 

considered carefully in light of how they would reflect on the poster, the Board of 
Trustees, and the District.  Opinions expressed by staff board members on a social 
networking website have the potential to be disseminated far beyond the speaker’s desire 
or intention, and could undermine the public perception of fitness of the individual to 
serve students’ interests.  Individual Board member postings are an act of the individual 
and are not an act of the Board. 

 
4. Board members will avoid reference to confidential information about employees, 

students, or other matters in e-mail communications, because of the risk of improper 
disclosure or unsecure websites.  Board members will comply with the same standards as 
school employees with regard to confidential information and security measures taken 
when sending it electronically. 

 
5. Board members shall refrain from downloading or using the TikTok app or visiting the 

TikTok website on any District-provided device or while connected to the District’s 
network. If TikTok has already been downloaded onto a device issued to a Board 
member by the District, the Board member shall delete the app or seek District assistance 
in deleting it. 

 
6.  Trustees shall not use District-provided email or social media for personal purposes. 

 



 

 1405-2 (ISBA 2012) 

Use of any District-provided electronic device for informal or personal purposes is permissible 
within reasonable limits provided it does not interfere with their duties as a Board trustee and 
complies with District policy. However, the Board member needs to understand that such use of 
school-provided electronic devices for personal or informal purposes may be subject to 
production in a public records request. 

 
Definitions 
 
"Deliberation" is defined as the receipt or exchange of information or opinion relating to a 
decision, but shall not include informal or impromptu discussions of a general nature which do 
not specifically relate to a matter then pending before the public agency for decision. 

♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ 
 
Cross Reference:  5325  Employee Use of Social Media Sites, Including Personal Sites 
   5330 Employee Email and Online Services Usage 
 
 
Legal Reference: I.C. § 9-337 Public Writings et. seq. 
   IC § 18-6726  TikTok Use by State Employees on a State-Issued Device 

Prohibited 
   I.C. § 67-2341(2) Open Public Meetings – Definitions  
   Idaho Executive Order 2022-06 

Cowles Pub. Co. v. Kootenai Co. Bd. of County Commissioners 144 Idaho 
259 (2007). 

 
Policy History 
ADOPTED: 8/11/14 
ISBA 
REVISED:  



 

 
POLICY TITLE: 

 
Part-time Attendance & Dual Enrollment 

 
POLICY NO:  3030 

PAGE 1 of 3 
 

 

  3030-1
 (ISBA 8/18 UPDATE) 

Students who attend the Twin Falls School District on a part-time basis while receiving 
schooling outside of the District are considered “dual-enrolled”. For purposes of this policy, the 
term These students include “non-public school students” is any student who are is enrolled in a 
non-public school (including a home school or private school), enrolled in a public charter 
school, or enrolled in a post-secondary institution. Dual-enrolled students may also include 
students attending another Idaho public school including public charter schools outside the Twin 
Falls School District who also enroll in TFSD Twin Falls School District classes or programs 
that are not offered in their home district or school. For these students, the District may charge 
tuition, only in instances where the student is not being claimed as part of average daily 
attendance by the Twin Falls School District as outlined in I.C. 33-1406.  

 
Any non-public school dual-enrolled student will be allowed to enroll in the District and be 
entitled to participate in any program (curricular or extracurricular) not offered by their home 
school.  Additionally, dual-enrolled students are subject to the same requirements as other 
students who are enrolled full-time in the District and subject to the requirements set forth below 
in this Policy. 
 
Additionally, the District shall have an option for joint dual enrollment in a regular public school 
and in an alternative school. 

 
Non-public school Dual-enrolled students admitted to the District shall only be on school 
property during the hours of enrollment or as otherwise indicated by the Superintendent or 
Principal building administrator. The District will not be responsible for the student during non-
enrollment hours or times. Any transportation needs for such students not provided for 
otherwise under this policy during the school day shall be the sole responsibility of the student 
and his/her their parents or guardian. 

 
Admittance 
The parent/legal guardian of any non-public school student wishing to admit their son/daughter 
in the District for any academic or non-academic program must register the student and provide 
the following prior to acceptance of any such student. In the case of a public school student 
applying for dual enrollment, these records may be accessible from their home school. It is the 
responsibility of the parent/guardian to ensure that the home school provides these records: 

 
1. Birth certificate; 
2. Evidence of residency within the District, if the student is applying from within the 

school/district zone; 
3. Immunization records (or an appropriate waiver); and 
4. Student records from the previously attended public school, if any, and any 

other records providing academic background information. 
 

Extracurricular Activities 



  3030-2
 (ISBA 8/18 UPDATE) 
 

Participation in extracurricular activities shall be subject to Policy 3031. 
 
Priority 
Priority for enrollment, when school programs reach maximum capacities, will be given to 
students enrolled on a regular full-time basis. If a number of non-public school dual-enrolled 
students request admission into the same class, they will be accepted on a first-come basis. In the 
event the class enrollment position of a  non-public school dual-enrolled student is needed for a 
regular full-time student during the course of the year, the full-time student will have priority for 
the position beginning with the semester after the need is identified. 

 
Average Daily Attendance 
Students who are dual-enrolled, not including those who pay tuition to the District as detailed in  
I.C. 33-1406,  (i.e., enrolled on a part-time basis) shall be used in calculating the District’s state 
fund, but only to the extent of the student’s participation in District programs. 

 
Transportation 
All non-public school dual-enrolled students will be eligible for District transportation services. A 
public charter school student or non-public student, Upon admission to a school in this District, a 
dual-enrolled student may ride a school bus on regularly scheduled routes (including activity bus 
routes) and use regularly established bus stops or stops which would require no deviation from the 
regularly established bus route. No alteration of routes will be made to specially accommodate a 
dual enrollment student. If a dual enrollment student attends only part time, the District may 
furnish transportation at the regularly scheduled time closest to the time period for which a student 
is enrolled (i.e., morning busing for a.m. classes or afternoon busing for p.m. classes). The District 
will not provide such transportation if there is n 
o available space, if the furnishing of such transportation would cause a deviation or alteration of 
the regularly established bus routes or stops or if the furnishing of such transportation would 
require the purchase of additional or substitute equipment. 

 
Graduation 
In order to graduate from this District, all non-public school students must meet the standard 
graduation requirements as outlined in Policy 2720P, unless exceptions are made as described in 
2710 High School Graduation Requirements—Specialty Diplomas. 

 
Mixed Curriculum 
If a public charter school student or nonpublic student wishes to attend activities or programs in a 
particular discipline, in a class or grade where the curriculum is merged or integrated, such request 
shall be made in writing particularizing the subject matter presentation which the student desires to 
attend (i.e., art instruction in a third-grade class). The teacher and principal of that school shall, 
upon request, provide scheduling information to the dual-enrollment student. It shall be the dual-
enrollment student’s responsibility to contact the District School and ascertain when such subject 
matter will be presented. Where certain subject matter is integrated into a mixed curriculum, no 
change in the presentation of that curriculum needs to be made because of a nonpublic student’s 
request for attendance. It is also the intent of this policy to ensure that the teacher’s right to 
integrate disciplines and be flexible in planning and modifying the daily classroom presentations 



  3030-3
 (ISBA 8/18 UPDATE) 
 

shall not be hindered or restricted in any way. 
 
IDEA/ADA/Section 504 Students 
Parents who wish to have a dual-enrollment student’s disability accommodated by the District via 
a 504 Plan or who wish to have their student to be enrolled in special programs must comply with 
the requirements of the Individuals with Disability Act (IDEA) and the Americans with 
Disabilities Act (ADA) or Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Section 504). Parents 
may request an evaluation. Such requests will be taken to the multidisciplinary team, which shall 
determine if special services are appropriate for the student. If special services are needed by the 
student, then programs will be provided when possible.  Until such determination is made, such 
special educational services or accommodations will not be provided. 

 
If a dual-enrolled student or a student enrolled part-time at a District school is found to be eligible for 
a 504 Plan, the District’s process to create and implement a 504 Plan for a student shall be followed.  
 
Whether the District is responsible for assessing a student’s need for special education services and 
for maintaining and implementing an IEP for the student depends on factors including, but not 
limited to what other type of school the student is enrolled in, if any; whether the student lives in the 
District; and whether a private school they attend is located in the District. The District shall provide 
such assessment and related services when required by state or federal law or administrative rules.  
 
 

♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ 
 
Cross References:  2400  Special Education 
 2410 & 2410P Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act 
 2710  Specialty Diploma 
 2720  Participation in Commencement Exercises  
 3031 Extracurricular Activities-Eligibility for Students Not Enrolled for  
  Academic Activities 
 3525 Immunization Requirements 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: I.C. § 33-203 Dual enrollment 

 I.C. § 33-1001, et. seq. Average Daily Attendance  
  I.C. 33-1406 Bills or Tuition 
 IDAPA 08.02.03.111.13 Dual Enrollment 

Individuals with Disability Act (IDEA) and the Americans with Disabilities 
Act (ADA) or Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Section 504) 

 
 
 
Policy History: 
ADOPTED: 8/14 
ISBA 



  3030-4
 (ISBA 8/18 UPDATE) 
 

REVISED: 10/12/15 
 11/12/18 
 12/13/21 



POLICY TITLE: Gender Identity and Sexual Orientation POLICY NO: 
3281  PAGE 1 of 3 

3281-1 

The Board believes in fostering an educational environment that is safe and free of 
discrimination for all students, regardless of sexual orientation, gender identity, or gender 
expression. This policy is designed to create a safe learning environment for all students and to 
ensure that every student has equal access to all school programs and activities. It is the 
responsibility of the District to provide all students, including LGBTQ+ students, with a safe 
school environment. Discrimination, harassment, bullying, or sexual harassment complaints 
involving a student’s gender identity or sexual orientation shall be handled in the same manner 
as other discrimination, harassment, bullying, and sexual harassment complaints. Failure of any 
school student or school employee to abide by the terms and provisions of this policy will subject 
such individual to disciplinary action. 

The District will use the sex indicated on a student’s birth certificate when applying district 
policies. If a student does not have a birth certificate, consistent with Section 18-4511, Idaho 
Code,  an alternative form of governmental identification may be considered for the 
determination of a student’s sex. Under no circumstances shall District personnel require a 
medical exam or physical inspection to establish a person’s sex. 

A student’s use of restrooms, changing facilities, and sleeping rooms shall be addressed as 
described in Policy 9605, and a student’s gender will therefore affect access to such facilities. In 
no case, however, will a student be denied the right to participate in school activities and/or an 
overnight trip because of that student’s gender or sexual orientation. The District will provide all 
students the opportunity to participate in any activities segregated by gender in a manner that is 
consistent with the Idaho High School Activities Association (IHSAA) rules and regulations. 

Accommodations 

A student or the student’s parent/guardian may request a meeting be held with the building 
principal, the student, and the student’s parent/guardian to discuss accommodations related to a 
student’s gender expression or identity The goal of the meeting is to develop an understanding of 
that student's needs with respect to their gender identity and develop a plan to address those 
needs. 

Change of Official School Records 

District records required by law to include the student’s legal name and/or gender will be 
changed by the District upon the student’s/former student’s presentation of appropriate legal 
documentation to the District Office.  Any current or former student may present to the 
Superintendent or designee responsible for student records a copy of a court order or birth 
certificate identifying a change to the student’s legal name and/or gender. The student’s records 
will be changed accordingly. 

Student Records and Privacy 



 

 3281-2  

The District’s official records required by law shall utilize a student’s legal name. In situations 
where State or federal law or administrative rules require school employees to use or report a 
student's legal name or gender, such legal name or gender shall be utilized. However, school 
staff shall utilize practices to avoid the inadvertent disclosure of the student’s transgender status. 
 
Information regarding a student's sexual orientation, gender identity, gender expression, legal 
name, or gender assigned at birth may constitute confidential information. Disclosure of such 
information shall be in accordance with District policies pertaining to student privacy. The 
student’s educational record shall not include mention of the student’s sexual orientation. 
 
Confidentiality 
 
School employees should not disclose a student's transgender status or sexual orientation to other 
individuals, regardless of setting, including the other school personnel unless they have a 
legitimate need to know or unless the student has authorized such disclosure. Action in violation 
of such student confidentiality may subject an employee to discipline, up to and including 
possible termination, and for certificated personnel, a report to the Professional Standards 
Commission. 
 
However, when the school becomes aware of a student’s change in a student’s gender identity or 
expression and such change constitutes a change in the student’s mental, emotional, or physical 
health or wellbeing, the building principal and/or school counselor shall notify the student’s 
parent/guardian. The individuals responsible for parental notification shall keep documentation 
that such notification has occurred detailing the date and time, participants in the 
communication, manner of communication, and the content of such communication. 
 
Faculty/Staff Concerns with a Student’s Health/Performance 
 
 If the school’s staff members believe that a gender identity or expression issue is presenting 
itself and creating difficulty for a student at school, the school’s administrative staff and/or 
counselor shall approach the student’s parent/guardian about the issue.  An individual teacher 
shall not approach a student’s parent/legal guardian to address such a student situation. Instead, 
they shall notify the building principal or school counselor. The building principal or their 
designee shall work with the counselor to notify the student’s parent/guardian and take any 
appropriate further steps. 
 
If a student, parent/guardian, or District employee has an issue or concern related to this policy, 
they should discuss the concern with the building administrator so that a resolution can be 
reached. 

♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ 
 
Cross Reference: 2140 Student and Family Privacy Rights 
 3255 Student Dress 
 3280 Equal Education, Nondiscrimination, and Sex Equity 
 3290 Sexual Harassment/Intimidation of Students 



3281-3 

3295 Hazing, Harassment, Intimidation, Bullying, Cyber Bullying, 
Menacing 
3575 Student Data Privacy and Security 
9605 Facilities Separated by Sex 

Legal Reference: 20 U.S.C. § 1681, et seq. Title IX of the Educational Amendments  
I.C.  § 33-133(1)(j)(ii) Definitions—Student Data—Use and Limitations—
Penalties
IC § 33-6602 et seq. Definitions

Other Reference: Idaho High School Activities Association Rules & Regulations, Rule 11-3 
Transgender Student Participation 

Policy History 
ADOPTED: 10/12/15 

REVISED: 



 
 
POLICY TITLE: 

 
Corrective Actions and Discipline 

 
POLICY NO: 3340   

PAGE 1 of 3 
 

 

 3340-1 (ISBA 12/15 UPDATE) 

  
All students shall submit to the reasonable rules of the District.  Refusal to comply with written 
rules and regulations established for the governing of the school shall constitute sufficient cause 
for discipline, suspension, or expulsion. 
 
For the purposes of the District's policies relating to corrective action or punishment: 
 
1. In-School Suspension is the exclusion of the student from classroom and school 

sponsored activity participation while still allowing general school attendance but in 
attendance at school. The student would continues theirhis/her school day under 
administrative monitoring by a staff member.  In-school suspension is for a term not to 
exceed five (5) school days. 

 
2. Temporary Suspension is the exclusion from school or individual classes and school 

sponsored activities for a specific period of up to five (5) school days.   
 
The Superintendent or the principal building administrator of any school may temporarily 
suspend any pupil student for disciplinary reasons, including student harassment, 
intimidation or bullying, or for other conduct disruptive of good order or of the 
instructional effectiveness of the school. Prior to suspending any student, the 
administration will conduct an informal conference on the reasons for the suspension and 
the opportunity to challenge those reasons with the student and/or parent/guardian. Any 
pupil student who has been suspended may be readmitted to the school. The re-
admittance may be contingent on reasonable conditions prescribed by the Superintendent 
or principal.  The Board of Trustees shall be notified of any temporary suspensions, the 
reasons for them, and the response to them.  
 

a.  Only the Superintendent (or the Board) can extend an initial temporary 
suspension. The Superintendent may extend the suspension for an additional 
ten (10) school days. Prior to suspending any student for an additional ten 
days, the Superintendent shall offer an additional informal hearing on the 
reasons for the extended temporary suspension and the opportunity to 
challenge those reasons.  

 
b. Only the Board can extend a temporary suspension for an additional five (5) 

days, beyond the additional ten (10) days added by the Superintendent, and 
only upon a finding that immediate return to school attendance by the 
temporarily suspended student would be detrimental to the health and safety 
of other pupils students .  

 
3. “Expulsion” is the exclusion from school. Only the Board has the authority to expel 

or deny enrollment to any pupil student who is a habitual truant, who is incorrigible, 
whose conduct is such to be continuously disruptive of school discipline or of the 



 

 3340-2 (ISBA 12/15 UPDATE) 

instructional effectiveness of the school, or whose presence is detrimental to the 
health and safety of other pupils students or who has been expelled from another 
school district in the State of Idaho or any other state. The District will provide 
written notice of any student who is expelled or denied enrollment to the prosecuting 
attorney within five (5) days of the Board’s actions. 

  
No pupil student shall be expelled nor denied enrollment without the Board of 
Trustees or their designee having first given written notice to the parent or guardian 
of the pupil student stating the grounds for the proposed expulsion or denial of 
enrollment and the time and place where such parent or guardian may appear to 
contest the hearing. The hearing may only be contested on the basis that the parent 
feels the procedure was incorrect, incomplete, or in some manner inappropriate. The 
notice shall also state the rights of the pupil student to be represented by counsel, to 
produce witnesses and submit evidence on their his or her own behalf, and to cross-
examine any adult witnesses who may appear against them him or her. Within a 
reasonable period of time following such notification, the Board of Trustees District 
shall grant the pupil student and their his or her parents or guardian a full and fair 
hearing in front of a hearing officer on the proposed expulsion. The administrator 
shall allow a reasonable period of time between notification and the hearing to allow 
the pupil student and their his or her parents parents or guardian to prepare their 
response to the charge. 
 
If the parent wishes to appeal, an appeal hearing is set up with the Board and the 
parent is given a set of instructions outlining the procedure that will be covered in the 
appeal meeting. The Board is given the same document and the script within the 
document is followed. The intent of the appeal meeting is not to rehear all the details 
that led to the expulsion recommendation, but to determine whether the child received 
a fair and impartial hearing. See Procedure 3740P.  
 
Except in extreme cases, students will not be expelled unless other forms of 
corrective action or punishment have failed, or unless there is good reason to believe 
that other forms of corrective action or punishment would fail if employed. 
Suspensions or expulsions shall be used only for instances of serious student 
misconduct. 
 
Once a student is expelled in compliance with District policy, the expulsion shall be 
brought to the attention of appropriate local or state authorities, in order that such 
authorities may address the student’s needs. 
 

4. “Discipline” constitutes all other forms of corrective action or punishment, including 
brief exclusions from a class for not more than the remainder of the class period and 
exclusion from any other type of activity conducted by or for the District.  Discipline 
shall not adversely affect specific academic grade, subject, or graduation 
requirements, as long as all required work is performed. 
 



 

 3340-3 (ISBA 12/15 UPDATE) 

5. No student shall be expelled, suspended, or disciplined in any manner for any 
behavior act not related to the rules and regulations established for the governing of 
schools. the orderly operation of the school or school-sponsored activities or any 
other aspect of the educational process.  
 

Students with Disabilities 
Additional requirements apply when suspending or expelling a student with a disability. The 
District shall comply with these requirements as outlined in Procedure 3340P 
 
Students with disabilities may also be suspended under these same rules if the suspension will 
not constitute a change in placement. If a student with a disabling condition accrues ten (10) days 
suspension per year, the Child Study Team who has knowledge of the student’s disabling 
condition will determine if there is causal relationship between the disabling condition and the 
student's misconduct.  If such a relationship exists, the student’s educational placement may not 
be changed without parental approval or a court order, pending a due process hearing under 
IDEA. 
 
Likewise, before a recommendation on the expulsion of a disabled student is submitted to the 
Board, the Child Study Team must meet to determine if there is a causal relationship between the 
disabling condition and the student’s misconduct.  
 
When a disabled student is acting in such a way that he/she poses a danger to himself/herself or  
to another student or property, or substantially disrupts his/her educational program or that of 
other students, temporary suspension may take place. Temporary suspensions may not last longer 
than ten (10) school days. The principal shall convene the Team for reviewing the student’s 
record before the student is readmitted to school no later than the tenth (10th) day of suspension. 
 

 
♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ 

 
Cross Reference: 3330   Student Discipline 
 3340P  Corrective Actions and Discipline 
 3360   Discipline of Students with Disabilities 
 3370   Search and Seizure  
 3740P   Student Expulsion/Denial of Enrollment 
  
 
Legal Reference: 20 U.S.C. 1400, et seq. Individuals with Disabilities Education Act 
 I.C. § 33-205 Denial of school attendance 
 I.C. § 33-512 Governance of schools 
 I.C. § 33-1630 Requirements for Harassment, Intimidation, and Bullying 

Information and Professional Development 
 
Policy History 
ADOPTED: 3/14/16 
ISBA 



 

 3340-4 (ISBA 12/15 UPDATE) 

REVISED: 4/13/20 
 1/11/21 



PROCEDURE TITLE: Corrective Actions PROCEDURE NO: 3340P 
 and Discipline          PAGE 1 of 7 

 3340P-1 (TFSD) 

Discipline Philosophy 
Discipline is an integral and important part of the educational process.  Students are expected to 
demonstrate good manners, honesty, integrity, respect, and accept responsibility for their actions. The 
objective of any corrective action is to assist the student in learning and growing from their mistakes. 
 
Corrective Action 
Purpose: Corrective action ensures that students learn and grow from their mistakes so they may 
make responsible decisions that protect the rights of students, teachers, and school officials, and to 
maintain the continuity of the educational process. 
 
Corrective action will apply to students anytime the student is engaged in, or traveling to/from any 
school activity under the direction or supervision of district personnel or contracted employees. 
 
Corrective Action Procedures:  
Problems that cannot be handled by the classroom teacher should be referred to the principal or other 
school officials assigned to the task for entry into the corrective action procedure at the appropriate 
step. Every effort will be made to keep parents informed when a student enters the corrective action 
process procedure. Principals ultimately have the authority to deal with all infractions except for 
violations involving the possession of firearms and/or dangerous implements. Principals, therefore, 
may offer diversion or accountability alternatives at any step of the corrective action process. 
 
Steps:  Step 1 or 2 if cooperative 
            Step 2 or 3 if uncooperative or the action is repeated. 
 
Step 1. Disciplinary Action: 
Disciplinary action is the term used for all forms of corrective action other than suspension, 
emergency removal or expulsion. Disciplinary action may be administered by a building principal, 
assistant principal or other persons designated by the administrator. Disciplinary action may 
include: 
Counseling                                         Work detail 
Parent conferences                             Detention  
Home visitation                                  Restitution 
Special services evaluation                 In-school Suspension 
Referral to other agencies                   Peer mediation 
 
Step 2. Suspension: 
A suspended student is denied attendance at school and participation in other school sponsored 
activities for a stated period of time. This includes denial of admission to or entry upon any property 
that is controlled by the school district. Students undergoing in-school suspension are allowed on 
school property for academic purposes only. The building administrator may impose this action. 
 
Parents/Guardians must be notified prior to suspension except in instances when the student’s presence 
poses a continuing danger to persons or property or an ongoing threat of disruption to the educational 
process. In such cases, the notice and conference shall follow as soon as practicable. 

An arrangement can be made between the school or teacher and the student or their family so that 
graded work missed during the period of suspension can be completed by the student for consideration 



 

 3340P-2 (TFSD) 

for the student’s grade. 

 
 

1. In-School Suspension:  The student would continue his/her their school day under 
administrative monitoring by a staff member. 

 
2. Temporary Suspension:  A suspension up to and not exceeding five school days, except as 

detailed in Policy 3340. Conditions and limitations of a temporary suspension are as 
follows: 

a. Prior to a temporary suspension, an informal conference will be conducted 
with the student and/or parents/guardians. ISBA also says a pre-suspension 
conference is not required and the student can be immediately suspended when 
the student’s presence poses a continuing danger to persons of property or an 
ongoing threat of disruption to the educational process. In such cases, the 
notice and conference shall follow as soon as practicable.  

b. Parent/Guardian must be notified prior to suspension 
c. Any student subject to a temporary suspension must be provided, upon their return, 

an opportunity to make up time, assignments, and tests missed as outlined in the 
building's attendance and makeup policy. At the end of the period of suspension, the 
student shall be automatically readmitted to school. The re-admittance may be 
contingent on reasonable conditions prescribed by the Superintendent or principal. 

d. At the request of building administration, the Superintendent may suspend a 
student for a period up to ten (10) additional school days. 

e. At the request of the Superintendent of schools, the Board of Trustees may 
suspend a student for a period up to five (5) additional school days. 
 

Step 3.  Expulsion:  
Expulsion means a denial of attendance to school or any other activity conducted by or on behalf of 
the school district for an indefinite period of time.  An expulsion also may include a denial of 
admission to or entry upon real or personal property that is owned, leased, rented or controlled by the 
school district.  All expulsions are subject to the conditions and limitations as set forth in Expulsion 
Policy 3740 and Procedure 3740P. 
 
Note: A student may be removed immediately from a class, subject, or activity by a certified teacher, 
an administrator, or persons designated by the administrator, and sent to the building principal or 
designated school authority. The teacher or administrator must have good and sufficient reason to 
believe that the student's presence poses an immediate and continuing threat or substantial disruption 
of the educational process.  This removal can continue until the threat or disruption has been 
addressed; or the building administrator principal imposes disciplinary action, suspension, or 
recommends expulsion. 
 
Code of Conduct and Corrective Action for Activities 
Activity directors and/or coaches may choose to develop a written discipline code for their activity 
which may dictate more severe consequences than the corrective action procedures listed in this 
document. These special activity discipline codes, which must be approved by building 
administrators, will be enforced as long as the student is engaged in that particular activity.  
 
Guidelines for Law Enforcement Interviews/Interrogations 



 

 3340P-3 (TFSD) 

There are a variety of circumstances when a A law enforcement official may wishing to 
interview or interrogate a student on a school campus. shall, when practicable The district 
requests that these officials, when practicable,: 

1. notify the building administrator or designee; 
2. record or document the interview/interrogation; and 
3. initiate communicateion with parents/guardians, either by the building administrator or 

the law enforcement official, at the earliest appropriate time, as long as it does not 
obstruct the investigation. 

These requests may not pertain to School Resource Officers, as interviewing and communicating with 
students is a common part of their law enforcement role within the school. 
 
Search and Seizure 
As detailed in Policies 3370 and 3370P, School authorities may inspect and search school property and 
equipment owned or controlled by the school (such as lockers, desks, and parking lots), as well as 
personal effects left there by the student, without notice or consent of the student. student lockers are 
school district property, and as such, are subject to periodic inspections without permission and 
without notice, by school officials and/or school officials accompanied by police officers. 

1. Searches may be conducted of a student’s person, his/her backpack, or automobile by a 
school official if the school official has a reason to believe that the search is needed to  
maintain an appropriate environment for learning, and that this need outweighs the student’s 
expectation for privacy. 

2. When the search of a student, his/her backpack, or automobile is made by a police officer, or 
a school official in the presence of a police officer for law enforcement purposes, the police 
officer must have probable cause to believe that they will find contraband or evidence of an 
illegal act. 

3. Any search of a student’s person and/or backpack as a result of the activation of a metal 
detector will be conducted in accordance with this policy. 

4. Attempts should be made to conduct all searches in private. 
5. At the beginning of each school year, building administrators should inform students that this 

policy applies while they are on school property and/or at a school function away from 
school property. 

 
Offenses Violating Idaho Code 
Appropriate law enforcement agencies will be notified. Parents/guardians will be notified. 
 
Personal and Property Rights Violations Requiring Disciplinary Action 
 

1. Altercation or Harassment: A serious argument or verbal harassment which, in the judgment of 
the staff member, may lead to physical violence or be physically, mentally, or emotionally 
abusive or degrading. 

 
2. Incitement to Disorder: The incitement by an individual or group to commit or engage in 

any behavior precisely limited by Idaho Code. 
 

3. Verbal Abuse of School Personnel: Unprovoked, overt, verbal or nonverbal communications 
of disrespect or contempt directed toward staff members. 



 

 3340P-4 (TFSD) 

 
4. Willful Disobedience: Overt and conscious disregard for a legal request or order given by 

a recognized school or civil official or their deputy. 
 

5.  Robbery: The act of taking the personal property of another, from their his person or in their 
his presence, against their his will or under constraint of fear or force. 

 
6. Petty Theft: Theft of items valued at less than $1,000.00 

 
7. Theft: To unlawfully take away another person's property without their  his consent, secretly 

and without the use of threat or violence. 
 

8. Entering Another's Locker, Desk, or Personal Belongings Without Permission: The act 
of entering another student’s locker, desk, or other personal belongings without 
permission. 

 
9. Possession of a Stolen or Lost Article: The possession (on the person or in the locker/car), 

of any article reported lost or stolen. 
 

10. Vandalism: Willful damage to personal or public property. 
 

11. Breaking, Entering, and/or Damaging School Facilities or Property: Forcibly entering a school 
facility, entering a school facility without the permission of school authorities, and/or 
damaging a school facility or school property. If the offense is committed by a high school 
senior during his/her senior year, the student will forfeit the opportunity to attend his/her 
graduation ceremony. 

 
12. Truancy: Any student attending school in the Twin Falls School District 411 is deemed truant 

from school or class if the student is absent from school without the consent of the student’s 
parent/guardian or school officials, or is absent from school with the consent of the parent for 
an invalid reason. Valid reasons for being absent from school include illness, purposes 
considered essential to the family operation (e.g., death, divorce), and other reasons deemed 
significant by the family and school officials. Truancy includes absence from school or from 
class after arrival at school and departure from school during the school day without 
permission of school officials. Class work, homework, and exams missed while truant will 
not be allowed to be made up for credit. Truancy is a major disciplinary violation, and as such 
will result in parent(s)/guardian(s) being notified. 

 
13. Improper Parking of Student Vehicles: All students that who park vehicles in areas other than 

the designated parking area. 
Corrective Action Sequence: The vehicle will be impounded at the student’s expense. 

 
14. Negligent Driving: The operation of a motor vehicle in a manner which could endanger life 

or property.  Driving speed shall be reasonable and prudent on all school grounds and 
parking lots. 
 Corrective Action Sequence: Step 1 or 2 and/or referred to police and/or restricted 
from parking or operating a vehicle on or around school property.  Note: Driving speed 



 

 3340P-5 (TFSD) 

shall be reasonable and prudent on all school grounds and parking lots. 
 
The following violations, 15-17, require beginning  begins at corrective actions at 3340P pg. 1 of 
8, Step 2: 
 

15. Harassment/Bullying: Harassment/Bullying is aAny student’s repeated, willful, and malicious 
behavior that threatens, harms, “bullies,” or otherwise harasses another student, thereby 
disturbing that student’s ability to peaceably attend school or any school-related function. 
Harassment/Bullying includes, but is not limited to, threatening to fight or fighting, use of 
vulgar or offensive, profane, or indecent language, racial slurs, comments referring to a 
student’s mental/physical disability, sexual or religious orientation, dress, grades, and any 
other conduct that can be construed as offensive by the victim or the school. Further details 
regarding harassment and bullying may be found in Policy 3295 and Procedure 3295P. 

 
16. Assault: An intentional threat or attempt, with force, to do physical harm to someone, 

including extortion.  
 

17. Hazing: Any action or situation created that causes or is reasonably likely to cause harassment, 
bodily danger, or physical harm, severe mental or emotional harm, extreme embarrassment or 
ridicule, or personal degradation or loss of dignity to any student or other person associated 
with a school. NOTE:  In order for “hazing” to be “harassment,” the actions must be directed 
at an individual or group on the basis of race, national origin, religion, color, disability, age, 
grade level, or gender, or be unwelcome behavior of a sexual nature. Further details regarding 
hazing may be found in Policy 3295 and Procedure 3295P. 

 
18. Sexual Harassment: Sexual Harassment i Is defined as unwelcome sexual advances, requests 

for sexual favors, other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature, and/or discrimination 
based on gender differences. 
Corrective action: Follow District Sexual Harassment Policy 3290  

 
19. Fighting: The exchange of blows or other violent physical contact between or among two or 

more students. 
Corrective action: Begins at 3340P Pg. 2 of 8 Step 2 for grades 9-12 

 
20. Battery: A battery is any:  (a) willful and unlawful use of force or violence upon the person 

of another; or (b) actual, intentional and unlawful touching or striking of another person 
against the will of the other; or (c) unlawfully and intentionally causing bodily harm to an 
individual. 
Corrective action: Begins at 3340P Pg. 2 of 8 Step 2 and may include Step 3 depending on 
the severity of the offense. 

 
21. False Reports of Explosives, Bomb Threat, Alarms or 911 Emergency Call: Any student who 

reports to any police officer, sheriff, employee of a fire department or fire service, prosecuting 
attorney, newspaper, radio station, television station, employee of a bus service, employee of 
a school district, that a bomb or other explosive has been placed or secreted in a school 
building, school bus or on school property knowing that such report is false. 
Corrective Action: 
Kindergarten through grade 2            Start at Step 1 



 

 3340P-6 (TFSD) 

Police must be notified 
 
Grade 3 through grade 5                     Start at step 2 
Police must be notified. Student held financially liable. 
 
Grade 6 through grade 12                   Step 2 or 3 if cooperative 
Step 3 if uncooperative  
Police must be notified.  Student held financially liable. 

 
22. Substance Abuse Policy and Procedures:  

Refer to Procedure 3321P: Student Drug, Alcohol, and Tobacco Use, District Policy manual. 
 

23. Possession or Use of Fireworks, Weapons, and Dangerous Instruments: Possession, 
handling, or transporting, a firearm, dirk knife, Bowie knife, dagger, metal knuckles, or any 
deadly and dangerous weapon as defined in Section 921 of Title 18 of the United States 
Code, or Twin Falls City Code 6.2.1, or other items that the district considers dangerous. 
These items shall include but are not limited to a firearm, dirk knife, Bowie knife, dagger, 
switchblade, metal knuckles, including any knife other than a small pen knife a pocket knife 
with a blade of less than 2½ inches in length, any explosive, including firecrackers, or look-
alike or replica weapons, regardless of composition, air gun, flipper or other contrivance 
which propels a missile or missiles by use of compressed air, springs or any elastic 
substance; or any other dangerous object, on or about their person while on the property of 
the school district, while engaged in a school activity on other property, and/or while riding 
school-provided transportation. Such term does not include a pocket knife with a blade of 
less than 2½ inches in length. 
Corrective action: Step 2 Suspension and (any offense) Step 3 Expulsion for a minimum 
of one year or as determined by the Board of Trustees on a case-by-case basis. 

 
25. 24. Possession or use of a pocket knife of less than 2 ½ inches in length: Possessing, handling, 

or transporting a folding knife of less than 2 ½ inches in length on or about the person while on 
the property of the school district, while engaged in a school activity on other property, and/or 
while riding school-provided transportation. 
Corrective action: At the discretion of the building administrator depending on the 
disciplinary history of the student, may include suspension on a case-by-case basis.   

 
26. 25.  Use of Weapon or Dangerous Implement: Causing or attempting to cause physical injury 

with a weapon or dangerous implement as defined in the aforementioned paragraph, or 
behaving in a way, with any instrument, that could cause physical injury to any person. 
Corrective action: Step 2 Suspension and (any offense) Step 3 Expulsion for a minimum 
of one year or as determined by the Board of Trustees on a case-by-case basis. 

 
27. Zero Tolerance Policy: A policy relating to discipline of students carrying concealed firearms 

on school property: 
Idaho Code 18-3302D: Carrying weapons or firearms on school property. It shall be unlawful 
and is a misdemeanor for any person under the age of twenty-one (21) to posses carry a 
firearm, dirk knife, Bowie knife, dagger, metal knuckles or other deadly or dangerous weapon 
on or about their his person while on the property of a public or private elementary or 
secondary school or in those portions of any building, stadium or other structure on school 



 

 3340P-7 (TFSD) 

grounds which were, at the time of the violation, were being used for an activity sponsored by 
or through such a school in this state or while riding school provided transportation. 
 
The Board of Trustees of a school district shall expel any person violating the provisions of 
this section (18-3302D) if the violator is a student. The school shall immediately suspend the 
student pursuant to the provisions of section 33-205, Idaho Code. The board shall expel from 
school for a period of not less than one (1) year, twelve (12) calendar months, a student who 
has been found to have carried a weapon or firearm on school property, except that the Board 
may modify the expulsion order on a case-by-case basis. 
Corrective action: Step 2 Suspension and (any offense) Step 3 Expulsion for a minimum 
of one year or as determined by the Board of Trustees on a case-by-case basis. 

 
28. 26. Disruptive Acts: The intentional use of or urging of others to use violence, force, coercion, 

threat, intimidation, fear, or any other conduct to cause the substantial and material disruption 
or obstruction of any lawful mission, process or function of the school. 
Corrective action:  Starts at Steps 2 and 3 

 
29. Falsification of School Documents Including Digital Documents: Alteration of school 

documents (passes, report cards, permanent records, etc.) 
 

30. Prohibition of Gangs and Hate Groups: Gangs, hate groups, and similar organizations or 
groups which advocate hatred or discrimination on the basis of race, color, religion, gender, 
ancestry, national origin, or disability are inconsistent with the fundamental values of the 
educational environment of the Twin Falls School District 411. The activities of such groups 
and their members are prohibited on school district property and at all school functions. 

 
 Such prohibited activities include, but are not limited to: the congregation of members, the 

solicitation or recruitment of members, the possessions of group paraphernalia and materials, 
the intimidation of others, the advocacy of discrimination, and any other behavior, such as the 
wearing of gang colors or insignia and the use of language, codes, gestures that provoke 
violence or seek to advocate the purpose and objective of such groups. Disciplinary action 
may include suspension or expulsion. 

 
31.  Breach of Confidentiality of Records: Disclosure of personally identifiable information about a 

student is permitted only to school officials who have been determined by the district to have 
legitimate educational interests. Directory information may be disclosed to people who do not 
have a legitimate educational interest unless the parent or eligible student has objected to 
disclosure of this information. Directory information is defined in Procedure 3570P. includes 
name, address, telephone number, date and place of birth, major field of study, participation in 
official activities, dates of attendance, degrees, awards, previous schools, and similar 
information. 

 
Procedures for Students with Disabilities 
 
Students with disabilities are entitled to all of the due process rights set forth above.  In addition, the 
Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 
(Section 504) provide additional discipline procedures to a student with disabilities. The District shall 

Commented [1]: fix 



 

 3340P-8 (TFSD) 

comply with the provisions of the IDEA and Section 504 when disciplining students with disabilities.  
 
Suspension of Students with Disabilities 
 
The District may suspend a student with disabilities for up to ten cumulative or consecutive school 
days in a school year for violation of the code of student conduct and educational services may cease to 
the same extent educational services cease for students without disabilities. Cumulative suspensions, if 
over ten school days in a school year, must not constitute a significant change in placement. 
 
A significant change in placement occurs when a student with a disability is removed for more than ten 
consecutive school days or is subjected to a series of suspensions or removals that constitute a pattern 
of exclusion because they are more than ten school days in a school year, and because the length of 
each removal, the total amount of time the student is removed, and the proximity of the removals to 
one another indicate a pattern of exclusion. 
 
In order to extend a suspension beyond ten cumulative or consecutive school days in a school year, the 
district must conduct a manifestation determination review as detailed in the Idaho Department of 
Education Idaho Special Education Manual. 
 
For a student with an Individualized Education Program (IEP) who is suspended for more than ten 
cumulative school days in a school year and a change in placement does not occur, educational 
services shall be provided to the extent necessary to enable the student to appropriately progress in the 
general education curriculum and appropriately advance toward achieving the goals set out in the IEP, 
although in another setting, as determined by school personnel, in consultation with at least one of the 
student’s teachers. For students with 504 Plans, if it is determined that the student's violation is not a 
manifestation of the student’s disability, services shall not be provided.  
 
Expulsion of Students with Disabilities 
 
A student with an IEP or 504 plan may not be expelled if the student’s violation of the student code of 
conduct is a manifestation of the student’s disability. Such determination shall be conducted through 
the manifestation determination review in the Idaho Department of Education Idaho Special Education 
Manual. Any student with an IEP or 504 plan whose violation of the code of conduct is not a 
manifestation of the student’s disability may be expelled pursuant to expulsion procedures to the same 
extent a nondisabled student would be expelled for the same violation. 
 
If a student on an IEP is expelled for conduct not a manifestation of the student’s disability the student 
shall continue to receive education services at an alternative setting, consisting of services necessary to 
enable the student to appropriately progress in the general education curriculum and appropriately 
advance toward achieving the goals set out in the student’s IEP during the period of expulsion. 
Additionally, the student must receive, as appropriate, a functional behavioral assessment (FBA) and 
behavior intervention services and modifications designed to address the behavior violation so that it 
does not recur. 
 
If a student with a 504 plan is expelled for conduct not a manifestation of the student’s disability, 
educational services may cease during the period of expulsion to the same extent educational services 
cease for students without disabilities. 



 

 3340P-9 (TFSD) 

 
Additional Provisions 
 
A student on an IEP who has carried a weapon to school or to a school function, or who knowingly 
possesses or uses illegal drugs, or sells or solicits the sale of a controlled substance while at school or a 
school function may be removed from the student’s current placement. Such a student may be placed 
in an appropriate interim alternative educational setting for no more than 45 school days in accordance 
with the IDEA. 
 
A student who is not on an IEP and who has violated the code of student conduct may assert any of the 
protections provided by the IDEA if it is determined the District had knowledge that the student was a 
child with a disability before the behavior that precipitated the disciplinary action occurred. The 
District had knowledge if: 
 

1. The parent/guardian expressed concern in writing to supervisory or administrative personnel, or 
to the student’s teacher, that the student is in need of special education and related services; or 

2. The parent/guardian requested an evaluation; or 
3. The student’s teacher, or other District personnel expressed specific concerns about a pattern of 

behavior by the student directly to the director of special education or other supervisory 
personnel. 

 
Complaints and Grievances 
As detailed in the Uniform Grievance Policy 4120 pProblems are best resolved at the building level. 
Parents/guardians and students have the right to an informal conference with the building principal 
administrator or designee for the purpose of resolving the problem. If the complaints/grievances are 
not resolved, parents/guardians  and students have the right to present their concerns orally or in 
writing to the Director of Elementary or Secondary Programs. If the concerns are still not resolved, 
the parents/guardians and students have the right to present their issues to the Superintendent and 
then to the School Board. 

♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ 
 
Cross References: 3290 Sexual Harassment 
  3295 Hazing, Harassment, Intimidation, Bullying, Cyber Bullying 
  3295P Hazing, Harassment, Intimidation, Bullying, Cyber Bullying 
 3321P Student Drug, Alcohol, and Tobacco Use 
 3570P  Student Records 
 3740 Student Expulsion – Denial of Enrollment 
 3740P Student Expulsion – Denial of Enrollment 
 4120 Uniform Grievance Policy 
 
Legal References: US Code 18 Section 921 
 Twin Falls City Code 6.2.1 
 Idaho Code § 33-205 
 Idaho Code § 18-3302D Carrying Weapons or Firearms on School Property 
 Idaho Department of Education Idaho Special Education Manual. 



 

 3340P-10 (TFSD) 

 
Procedure History: 
ADOPTED:  
TFSD 
REVISED: 9/12/95 3/9/09 
 7/9/96  6/10/13 
 6/10/97 8/11/14 
 10/14/97 3/14/16 
 11/25/97 4/13/20 
 5/11/99 12/13/21 
 6/13/00 
 6/12/01 
 12/9/02 
 5/12/03 
 7/14/03 
 7/19/04 
 12/13/04 
 11/28/08 



 
 
POLICY TITLE: 

 
Student Fees, Fines and Charges / 
Return of Property 
 

 
POLICY NO: 3440   

PAGE 1 of 1 
 

 

 3440-1 (ISBA 3/22) 

Within the concept of free public education, the District shall provide an educational program for 
the students as free of costs as possible. 

Students may take all credit-based courses free of charge. There may be optional charges as 
described below.  

A student may be charged a reasonable fee for any non-credit course or non-curricular activity 
such as an extracurricular activity, student activity, or membership in a voluntary club or 
association. The Board or its designee may waive the fee in cases of financial hardship. 
 

Additional fees may be charged for “enhanced programming and materials” which are voluntary 
enrichments to the curriculum beyond what is necessary to meet the learning expectations for a 
particular grade or course (i.e. students may wish to use a superior product or consumable than 
that provided by the school, in which case they may be asked to pay the additional cost or the 
upgrade). This includes online enrollment fees when solely a matter of student/parental 
preference. 

The Board delegates authority to the Superintendent to establish appropriate fees and procedures 
governing the collection of fees and to make annual reports to the Board regarding fee schedules. 
A student may be responsible for the cost of replacing materials or property lost or damaged due 
to negligence and for excessive use of course supplies. If school property in a student’s 
possession is lost, broken, or otherwise damaged, the student may be charged the lesser of the 
fair market value of the item at the time or the cost of repair. 
 

The District may require, as a condition of graduation or issuance of a diploma or certificate that 
all lawful indebtedness incurred by a student be satisfied and/or that all books or other 
instructional materials, uniforms, athletic equipment, advances on loans, or other personal 
property of the District be returned.  

♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ 
 
Legal reference: I.C. § 33-603 Payment of fees or returning of property 
 
Policy History 
ADOPTED: 8/11/14 
ISBA 
REVISED: 1/8/18 
 5/9/22 



 
 
POLICY TITLE: 

 
Employee Use of Social Media Sites, 

Including Personal Sites 

 
POLICY NO: 5325   

PAGE 1 of 3 
 

 

 5325 -1 (ISBA) 

Because of the unique nature of social media sites, such as Facebook and Twitter, and because of 
the District’s desire to protect its interest with regard to its electronic records, the following rules 
have been established to address social media site usage by all employees: 
 
Protect Confidential and Proprietary Information 
 
Employees shall not post confidential or proprietary information about the District, its 
employees, students, agents, or others. The employee shall adhere to all applicable privacy and 
confidentiality policies adopted by the District or as provided by state or federal law. 
 
Do Not Use District Name, Logos, or Images 
 
Employees shall not use the District logos, images, iconography, etc. on personal social media 
sites. Nor shall employees use the District name to promote a product, cause or political party, or 
political candidate. Nor shall employees use personal images of students, or names or data 
relating to students, absent written authority of the parent of a minor or authority of an adult or 
emancipated student. 
 
Limited Use of Social Media for Personal Purposes 
 
Employees will use personal e-mail and social media only during non-work times, such as during 
lunch or before or after school. Employees are prohibited from downloading the TikTok app or 
visiting the TikTok website on any District device or using internet access provided by the District.  
Any use of permissible social media sites must occur during times and places that the use will not 
interfere with job duties, negatively impact job performance, or otherwise be disruptive to the 
school environment or its operation.  
 
On Personal Sites 
 
If you identify yourself as a District employee online, it should be clear that the views expressed, 
posted, or published are personal views, not necessarily those of the District, its Board, 
employees, or agents. 
 
Opinions expressed by staff on a social networking website have the potential to be disseminated 
far beyond the speaker’s desire or intention, and could undermine the public perception of fitness 
of the individual to educate students, and thus undermine teaching effectiveness. In this way, the 
effect of the expression and publication of such opinions could potentially lead to disciplinary 
action being taken against the staff member, up to and including termination or nonrenewal of 
the contract of employment. 
 
Keep Personal and Professional Accounts Separate 
 



 5325 -2 (ISBA) 

Staff members who decide to engage in professional social media activities will maintain separate 
professional and personal email addresses. Staff members will not use their District email address for 
personal social media activities. Use of District email for this purpose is prohibited and will be 
considered a violation of District policy that may result in disciplinary action. 
 
Contact with Students 
 
Although it is desired that staff members have a sincere interest in students as individuals, 
partiality and the appearance of impropriety must be avoided. Pursuant to the Code of Ethics for 
Idaho Professional Educators, individuals shall maintain a professional relationship with all 
students, both inside and outside of the classroom. Excessive informal and/or social involvement 
with students is therefore prohibited. This includes: 
 

● Listing current students as “friends” on networking sites wherein personal information is 
shared or available for review which results in the certificated professional employee not 
maintaining the Code of Ethics requiring professional relationships with students both 
inside and outside the classroom; 

● Any communication that does not have an educational purpose and is not professional in 
content and tone between a district employee and a student via telecommunications, text 
messages, e-mails, and/or any other medium. 

● Inappropriate contact of any kind including via electronic media. 
 
Nothing in this policy prohibits District staff and students from the use of education websites 
and/or use of social networking websites created for curricular, co-curricular, or extracurricular 
purposes where the professional relationship is maintained with the student.   
 
Failure to maintain a professional relationship with students, both inside and outside of a 
classroom setting, including interaction via social networking websites of any nature, e-mailing, 
texting, or any other electronic methods will result in the required reporting of such conduct to 
the Professional Standards Commission by the District’s Administration. 
 
Rules Concerning District-Sponsored Social Media Activity  
 
If an employee wishes to use Facebook, Twitter, or other similar social media sites to communicate 
meetings, activities, games, responsibilities, announcements etc., for a school-based club or a 
school-based activity or an official school-based organization, the employee must also comply 
with the following rules:  

 

● The employee must set up the club, etc., as a group list which will be “closed and 
moderated.” 

● The employee must set up mechanisms for delivering information to students that are not 
members of the group via non-electronic means.  

● Members will not be established as “friends” but as members of the group list.  



 5325 -3 (ISBA) 

● Anyone who has access to the communications conveyed through the site may only gain 
access by the permission of the employee (e.g. teacher, administrator, or supervisor). 
Persons desiring to access the page may join only after the employee invites them and 
allows them to join.  

● Parents shall be permitted to access any site that their child has been invited to join. Parents 
shall report any communications they believe to be inappropriate by students or school 
personnel to District Administration.  

● Access to the site may only be permitted for educational purposes related to the club, 
activity, organization, or team.  

● The employee responsible for the site will monitor it regularly. 

● The employee’s supervisor shall be permitted access to any site established by the 
employee for a school-related purpose.  

● Employees are required to maintain appropriate professional boundaries in the 
establishment and maintenance of all such District-sponsored social media activity.  This 
includes maintaining a separation between the school activity pages and employees’ 
personal social media profiles and pages. 

● Postings made to the site must comply with the District’s Computing Device and Network 
Acceptable Use Policy. 

● The Superintendent reserves the right to shut down or discontinue the group if he/she 
believes it is in the best overall interest of the students. 

 
♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ 

 
Cross Reference: 2960 Computing Device and Network Acceptable Use Policy 
 
Legal Reference: IDAPA 08.02.02.076 Code of Ethics for Idaho Professional Educators 

IC § 18-6726  TikTok Use by State Employees on a State-Issued Device 
Prohibited  

Idaho Executive Order 2022-06 
 
 
Policy History 
ADOPTED: 8/11/14 
ISBA 
REVISED:  



 9605-1 (ISBA 05/23 UPDATE) 

 
 
POLICY TITLE: 

 
Facilities Separated by Sex 
 

 
POLICY NO: 9605   

PAGE 1 of 2 
 

 
 
This policy discusses the use of bathrooms, changing facilities, and sleeping rooms.  
For the purposes of this policy, a student’s sex shall be the sex indicated on a student’s birth 
certificate. If a student does not have a birth certificate, consistent with Section 18-4511, Idaho 
Code,  an alternative form of governmental identification may be considered for determination of 
a student’s sex under this policy. Under no circumstances shall District personnel require a 
medical exam or physical inspection to establish a person’s sex.  
 
All areas assigned as a place to sleep during a District-sponsored overnight trip as well as all 
District restrooms and changing facilities that can be used by more than one person at a time 
shall be designated for use either by people who are male or female. A person may only enter 
such a multi-occupancy sleeping area, restroom, or changing facility if the facility’s designated 
sex corresponds to the user’s sex, except in the following cases: 
 

1. The facility is being shared by members of the same family. 
 

2. A person is employed to clean, maintain, or inspect a restroom, changing room, or 
sleeping room. 
 

3. A person enters a restroom or facility to render medical assistance. 
 

4. A person who needs assistance is accompanied by one of the following whose sex 
corresponds to the sex designated for the facility:  
 

A. A family member; 
B. A legal guardian; or  
C. A designee chosen by the person requiring assistance. 

 
5. The individual entering the facility is coaching staff and/or personnel during athletic 

events. 
 

6. There is an ongoing natural disaster or emergency.   
 

7. Entry in to the facility is necessary to prevent a serious threat to good order or student 
safety. 
 

The sex designation of restrooms and changing facilities may be temporarily changed. 
 
Single-occupancy restrooms and changing facilities or restrooms and changing facilities may be 
designated for unisex or family use provided they are conspicuously marked as such. 



9605-2 (ISBA 05/23 UPDATE) 

Accommodation Upon Request 

Upon written request from a parent or guardian for accommodation, each District school shall 
provide reasonable accommodation to any individual who, for any reason, is unwilling or unable 
to use a multi-occupancy restroom, changing facility, or sleeping room designated for the 
person's sex. Such accommodation may include use of a single-occupant facility. Such 
accommodation may not include access to a multi-person restroom, changing room, or sleeping 
room when: 

1. The facility is designated for the sex that does not correspond to the individual’s own sex;
and

2. A person whose sex differs from the person to be accommodated is or could be present.

The Board directs the Superintendent to take reasonable steps to enforce and implement this 
policy. 

Cross References:  2250 Field Trips, Excursions, and Outdoor Education 
3460 School-Related Foreign Travel by Students 

Legal References: IC § 33-6602 et seq. Definitions 

Policy History: 
Adopted on: 
Revised on: 
Reviewed on: 



PROCEDURE TITLE:  Student Expulsion/ PROCEDURE 3740P  
 Denial of Enrollment PAGE 1 of 17 

 3740P-1 

 
EXPULSION HEARING PROCEDURES 
 
The Twin Falls School District employs an expulsion hearing officer to conduct expulsion hearings. The 
expulsion officer first must determine if the student violated any policy.  Next, the hearing officer will 
determine whether the expulsion procedure was appropriately followed, if it was fair, if the evidence 
established the violation, and then if the expulsion is the appropriate disciplinary response. The steps of 
the expulsion procedure are as follows.  Each step has a form letter or a procedural description that 
accompanies it. 
 

1. The building administration recommends that a student be expelled and completes the letter (Letter 
#1) to be sent to the parent along with the description of the expulsion process. (Letter #2)  

 
2. The hearing officer follows a procedural guideline that contains within it a script of what he/she 

should say.  This helps to make the hearing process more consistent.  (Letter #3) 
 

3. The hearing officer fills out an expulsion summary that describes the hearing and the 
recommendation.  This document is sent to the Board along with a brief summary of the student's 
infractions.  (Letter #4) 
 

4. A copy of the expulsion summary is sent to the parent with a letter outlining the hearing officer’s 
recommendation to the Board (expulsion or no expulsion.)  The letter also states the parent’s right 
to appeal the recommendation.  (Letters #5 and #6).   
 

5. If the parent wishes to appeal, an appeal hearing is set up with the Board and the parent is given 
a set of instructions outlining the procedure that will be covered in the appeal hearing.  The 
Board is given the same document and the script within the document is followed.  The intent 
of the appeal hearing is not to rehear all the details that led to the expulsion recommendation, 
but to determine whether the child received a fair and impartial hearing.  (Letter #7) 

 
6. If there is no appeal, the Board reviews the expulsion hearing summary and affirms, modifies or 

rejects the recommendation for expulsion.  Depending upon the Board action, letters # 8 or #9 
are sent out. 

 
7. If the student is under 16, the courts are notified by letter and by formal petition.  (Letter #10)



 

 3740P-2 

ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURAL OUTLINE FOR EXPULSION HEARINGS  

The Hearing Officer should conduct the formal expulsion hearing in the following manner: 

1. Call to Order:  The hearing officer will describe the purpose of the expulsion hearing for the 
record.  
 

2. Notification Requirement:  The hearing officer will review with the parent/guardian the legal 
requirements the district must follow to notify him or her of the action being considered. 
 

3. Explanation of Hearing Officer’s Role and Responsibilities:  The hearing officer will review 
those things that he will do to conduct a fair, impartial hearing.  
 

4. Compiling the Basic Record: The hearing officer will collect any written documents or other 
exhibits the parent/guardian might have to support his or her position regarding the proposed 
expulsion, as well as any written documents or other exhibits that the school representative has 
to support the school’s position.   
 

5. Opening Statements:  Brief opening statements of five minutes or less will be allowed by the 
proponent of expulsion and by the student or the student's representative.  This is a preliminary 
statement to explain what each expects the evidence to show. 

 
6. Proponent's Evidence:  The proponent of expulsion will present any witnesses, documents, or 

other evidence which the proponent desires to be considered.  Witnesses may be cross-examined. 
The testimony of other witnesses not present at the hearing will be received in evidence. 

 
Any party wanting to reserve the right to cross-examine a witness not present at the hearing must 
make it known that such cross-examination of a specific witness is desired and also the general 
areas of cross-examination desired.  If cross-examination is desired of such a witness, then 
arrangements will be made to receive such cross-examination at a later time. 

 
7. Student's Evidence:  The student, his/her parents or representatives are permitted to be present and 

hear the evidence presented by the proponent.  In addition, the student is entitled to introduce 
evidence by testimony, writings, or other documents in his/her favor.  The student and/or parent 
can give testimony of his/her own. 

 
8. Hearing Officer Questions:  If at any time during the proceedings, the Hearing Officer feels that 

clarification of a point is needed, or that some aspect of the situation needs to be examined in 
more depth, the Hearing Officer may question the proponent and/or the student. 

 
9. Summation:  The proponent of expulsion and the student or his/her representative will be given 

an opportunity to make a closing summation of no longer than 10 minutes each.  The expulsion 
proponent may submit a rebuttal argument of no more than 5 minutes. 

 
10. Advisement: At the conclusion of the summation, the case will be taken under advisement by the 

hearing officer who will then prepare findings of fact and recommendations.  The proponent and 



 

 3740P-3 

student will receive a copy of the decision as soon as it is completed. 
 

11. Modification:  The procedural outline for a hearing is presented as a guideline, and may be 
changed by the hearing officer if the situation warrants and neither party formally objects.  A 
modification in the manner in which the hearing is conducted will not invalidate the decision of 
the hearing officer unless said modification results in a violation of the student's right to due 
process or the deliberate omission of material evidence. 
 

♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ 

 
Cross Reference: 3340 Corrective Actions and Punishment 
 
 
Procedure History 
ADOPTED: 10/8/91 
REVISED: 10/24/12 
   8/11/14 
   8/10/15 
  12/14/15 
 



 

3740P-4 

 
 
SENT TO PARENT BY SCHOOL                                                                                  Letter #1 
 
 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE RECOMMENDATION FOR EXPULSION  
 
[Place on School Letterhead] 
 
Dear               : 
 
The purpose of this letter is to notify you that the School District #411 administration has 
recommended that student’s name appear before the district Expulsion Hearing Office for 
a hearing to determine whether he/she should be expelled.  This recommendation is based 
on continued violation of school district discipline policies. Can list other charge(s) 
 
The administration has made an advisory recommendation.  The Expulsion Hearing Officer 
will decide whether to convey formally the expulsion recommendation to the Board of 
Trustees on the basis of information obtained at the hearing. 
 
The hearing has been scheduled for your son/daughter at                    in the morning/afternoon at 
school, address.                      will be permitted to have a representative present at the hearing to 
advise him/her.  The representative may be an attorney, parent, or guardian. 
 
The Expulsion Hearing Officer will hear the charges against your son/daughter, and see the 
evidence as presented by the building administrator.  He or she will allow                    or 
his/her representative the opportunity to present oral testimony, produce witnesses, affidavits, 
and or exhibits in his/her own behalf, and cross examine any adult witnesses who may appear 
against him/her.  In addition, the Hearing Expulsion Officer will make a record of the 
hearing. 
 
Please notify my office as to whether you plan to be present at the hearing to contest the 
charges.  If you have any questions regarding the charges, the hearing, or the possible outcomes, 
please feel free to call me at school phone number. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
Name 
Principal/Associate Principal 
School Name 
 
Enclosures 
 
 



 

3740P-5 

 
 
SENT TO PARENT FROM SCHOOL TO 
ACCOMPANY LETTER #1 
 
EXPULSION PROCEDURE DESCRIPTION 
 
[Place on School Letterhead] 

 
 
Letter #2

 
This document describes the procedure used by the Expulsion Hearing Officer when conducting 
an expulsion hearing in School District #411.  Though specific circumstances of your child’s 
situation may preclude the procedure from being rigidly followed, it does serve as a guideline for 
the Officer and gives you an idea as to what you may expect. 
 
 
Step 1: Call to Order 
 
The hearing officer will describe the purpose of the expulsion hearing for the record. 

Step 2: Notification Requirement 

The hearing officer will review with you the legal requirements the district must follow to notify 
you of the action being considered. 
 
Step 3: Explanation of Hearing Officer’s Role and Responsibilities 
 
The hearing officer will review those things that he or she will do to conduct a fair, impartial 
hearing.   
 
Step 4: Compiling the Basic Record 

The hearing officer will collect any written documents or other exhibits that you might have to 
support your position regarding the proposed expulsion, as well as any written documents or other 
exhibits that the school representative has to support the school’s position. 
 
Step 5:  Opening Statements 
 
Both the school representative and your child or his/her representative will be allowed five 
minutes to explain what you think your evidence will show. 
 
Step 6:  Proponent’s Evidence 
 
The school representative will be allowed to present all the evidence that he/she has acquired to 
support expulsion.



 

3740P-6 

Letter #2 Continued 
 
Step 7:  Student’s Evidence 
 
The student and/or the student’s representative will be allowed to present all the evidence that 
he/she has acquired to show why the student should not be expelled. 
 
Step 8:  Hearing Officer Questions 
 
The hearing officer may question the proponent, the student, or the student’s representative 
regarding any facet of the situation.  The questioning may occur at any time during the hearing. 
 
Step 9:  Summation 
 
The school representative and the student representative will be able to make a closing statement 
that summarizes their position. This statement should last no more than ten minutes.  After both 
parties have made their summary statements, the school representative is allowed to make a short 
rebuttal. 
 
Step 10:  Advisement 
 
After all the aforementioned steps have been taken, the hearing officer will end the hearing and 
excuse all participants.  The hearing officer will subsequently determine the facts and make the 
recommendation regarding expulsion.  Both parties will receive a written copy of the 
recommendation as soon as it is completed. 
 
  



 

3740P-7 

 

EXPULSION 
OFFICER’S SCRIPT 

Letter #3

 
PROCEDURAL SUGGESTIONS FOR THE HEARING OFFICER 

CALL TO ORDER 

This is the time and place for the hearing in the matter of the proposed expulsion of                     , a 
student at                         School.  This hearing was scheduled for the date of             , 20    , at the                    
in School District #411, Twin Falls, Idaho. 
 
For the record, I will identify myself; I am                                           , and I, by designation of 
Twin Falls School District #411 Board of Trustees, am empowered to act as the hearing officer 
in this matter of proposed expulsion. 
 
At this time, I will request that others present identify themselves for the record. First, the 
proponents of expulsion….and those present to represent the student. 
 
NOTIFICATION REQUIREMENTS 
 
The law requires that certain written notice be given to a student’s parent or guardian before a 
hearing can be held to expel any student.  Please respond either yes or no as to whether you 
received written notice stating the grounds for the expulsion, the time and place that you could 
appear to contest the action, the right of the student to be represented by counsel, the right of the 
student to submit evidence on his/her behalf, the right of the student to produce witnesses on 
his/her behalf, and the right to cross examine any adult witness who may appear against him/her. 
 
Finally, did you receive such notification in sufficient time to allow you to prepare your response 
to the charges? 
 
(If the answer to any of the above is no, repeat the rights, ask the parent whether he/she 
understands them, and whether he/she wishes to delay this hearing for a few days in order to 
obtain an attorney, witnesses, or prepare a defense.) 
 
EXPLAIN THE ROLE AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF HEARING OFFICER 
 
Each party should have available to them a copy of the hearing officer’s responsibilities and the 
procedures to be followed at this hearing.  For the record, I wish to review this information. 
 
Idaho law and school district policy stipulates that the school Board, or someone designated by 
the school Board, will act as a hearing officer in matters of student expulsion.  I have been 
designated by School District #411 Board of Trustees to serve as the hearing officer in these 
cases.  The hearing officer has the responsibility to compile the facts of the situation and make 
written findings of fact and recommendations to the Board of Trustees.



 

3740P-8 

Letter #3 Continued 
 
As the hearing officer, my findings and recommendations must be derived from the evidence 
presented at this hearing. 
 
Technical rules of evidence will not be followed.  Witnesses should, however, confine their 
testimony to personal knowledge.  Other evidence of a type commonly relied upon by reasonable 
people in the conduct of their serious affairs will be admitted.  Repetition should be avoided. 
 
My findings and recommendations will be submitted to the school Board, the proponent of 
expulsion, the student, and the student’s parents or guardians. 
 
My findings and recommendations will be immediately effective at the time they are reviewed 
by the school Board and affirmed, modified, or reversed.  Are there any questions from either 
party concerning the role and responsibilities as the hearing officer? 
 
The basic outline of procedure to be followed during this hearing will be as follows:  
 

1. Compiling of the basic record 
2. Opening statements 
3. Proponent’s evidence 
4. Student’s evidence 
5. Summation 
6. Advisement 

 
Does the proponent have any questions concerning the procedures to be followed? 
 
Does the student or his/her parents have any questions concerning the procedure to be followed? 
 
I will at this time, direct you that evidence and testimony be presented to the hearing officer and 
that all questions, comments, and statements be directed to the hearing officer, except those 
questions and responses that occur under cross-examination. 
 
Before we proceed, I will state my intention to complete, if possible, this hearing by          today. 
Should that not occur, I will decide, at that time, upon the time and date for a continuation. 
 
To both parties I ask, are you prepared to proceed with the hearing? 

Both parties are prepared to proceed with the hearing. 

1. BASIC RECORD:  I will now ask the proponents to identify and submit to the hearing 
officer, any exhibits they wish to be included in the basic record of jurisdictional documents.  
(Mark the exhibits by number.) 

 
To both parties, let me say that I reserve the right to collect additional informational exhibits, 
testimony, transcripts, or the like as items to include in the basic record at points later during the 
course of the hearing. 



 

3740P-9 

 
2.   OPENING STATEMENTS:  (Proponent first, respondent second) 

Letter #3 Continued 
3.   PROPONENT’S EVIDENCE 
 
4.   STUDENT’S EVIDENCE 
 
5.   SUMMATION (Proponent first, respondent second, proponent rebuttal third) 
 
At this point, the procedures set forth at the beginning of the hearing have been followed and 
concluding summations have been made.  It has been the main intent of this hearing to assure 
that the highest degree of due process has been afforded to all parties. 
 
It is now the responsibility of the hearing officer to deliberate upon and determine facts as they 
relate to the proposed expulsion of                             . These matters are never simple, as they 
involve both the immediate and the future education of this young person.  Consideration must 
be given to the student and at the same time, to the patrons, other students, faculty, and 
administration of this school district. 
 
I will not attempt to render my recommendation at this time. With fairness to all, I will make 
every attempt to complete my fact finding at the earliest time possible.  Upon making my 
decision, I will send written copies of the findings and recommendations to the Board of 
Trustees, the proponent, the student, and the student’s parents or guardians. 
 
The Board of Trustees will act upon my recommendation: to affirm, modify or deny the 
recommendation at the next Board meeting.  That meeting is scheduled for               , 20    , 
at____  p.m. ________________________________________________, Twin Falls, Idaho.  
You will receive notification by mail of the recommendation and the time that this matter will 
be considered by the Board of Trustees. 
  



 

3740P-10 

 

 
 
 
SENT TO SUPERINTENDENT’S 
SECRETARY FOR BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

Letter #4

 
EXPULSION OFFICER’S EXPULSION SUMMARY 
 
 
SCHOOL DISTRICT #411 
EXPULSION SUMMARY 
 
STUDENT NAME  DATE 
 

BOARD ACTION:   AFFIRM    
BOARD COMMENTS: 

 

MODIFY    
 

DENY    
 

 
 

STUDENT INFORMATION 
 
Date-of-Birth:                                                           Gender:            Grade: 

School:                                                             No. of Credits: 

Grade Average: 
 

ATTENDANCE INFORMATION 
 
PRESENT                                                                                                      ABSENCES 

TARDIES                                                                                                      TRUANT  

IN SCHOOL SUSPENSIONS                          OUT OF SCHOOL SUSPENSIONS 

CHARGES AGAINST STUDENT (INFRACTION): 
 
 
 
HEARING DESCRIPTION: 

HEARING OFFICER FINDINGS: 

HEARING OFFICER RECOMMENDATION: 



 

3740P-12 

 

 
 
 

Hearing Office



 

3740P-11 

SENT TO SUPERINTENDENT’S SECRETARY FOR BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
EXPULSION OFFICER’S EXPULSION SUMMARY 

SCHOOL DISTRICT #411 EXPULSION SUMMARY 

  

STUDENT NAME:                                                                         HEARING DATE: 
STUDENT INFORMATION 

Date-of-Birth:                                  Gender:                    Grade: 

School:                                                                                 No. of Credits:         Grade Average: 

504 or IEP  Yes      No       If Yes, Manifestation Determination has been completed?  

ATTENDANCE INFORMATION 
Present:                    Absences:              Tardies:                   Truant: 

In- School Suspensions:                           Out-of-School Suspensions: 

CHARGES AGAINST STUDENT (INFRACTION): Incorrigible/Safety/Weapon/Truancy 
                                                                                                                                             (Circle one or more reason) 
 HEARING DESCRIPTION: 
  
  
  
HEARING OFFICER FINDINGS: 
  
  
  

HEARING OFFICER RECOMMENDATION: 

  

  

______________________________ 

Hearing Officer Signature
 

 

BOARD ACTION: AFFIRM_________MODIFY__________DENY__________DATE: 



 

3740P-12 

  
LETTER #5 OR #6 SENT TO PARENT WITH SUMMARY LETTER #4 
EXPULSION HEARING OFFICER RECOMMENDING NO EXPULSION TO BOARD 
 
[Place on District Letterhead] 
 
Dear : Parent or guardian, 
 
This letter is written to inform you that the Expulsion Hearing Officer will recommend to the 
School District #411 Board of Trustees that your son/daughter,  NOT be expelled from school at 
this time. This recommendation is to be delivered to the Board at its next regularly scheduled 
meeting on date, and is based on the evidence presented by all parties at your recent expulsion 
hearing. 
 
Attached is a copy of the Expulsion Summary, illustrating the recommendation resulting from 
the hearing.  Please take a few minutes to review it. 
 
You need to be aware that this recommendation does not eliminate any record of past discipline 
policy violations committed by your son/daughter, but simply signifies that the Expulsion 
Hearing Officer has not found said infractions to warrant expulsion at this time.  Additional 
violations by             _ in the future will be grounds for the immediate initiation of expulsion 
proceedings. 
 
If you would like to discuss the matter further, please get in touch with me at 733-6900. 

Sincerely, 

 
 
 
Superintendent of Schools 
 
 
 
Enclosures 
 
cc:       Board of Trustees 
 School File 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

3740P-13 

 
 
 
 
 
 
LETTER #5 OR #6 SENT TO PARENT WITH 
SUMMARY LETTER #4 

 
 
Letter #6

 
EXPULSION HEARING OFFICER RECOMMENDING EXPULSION TO BOARD 
 
[Place on District Letterhead] 
 
 
 
Dear: Parent or guardian 
 
This letter is written to inform you that the Expulsion Hearing Officer will recommend to the 
School District #411 Board of Trustees that your son/daughter , be expelled from school for an 
indefinite period for continued violation of school district policies.  This recommendation is to 
be delivered to the Board at its next regularly scheduled meeting on date, and is based on the 
evidence presented by all parties at your recent expulsion hearing. 
 
Attached is a copy of the Expulsion Summary, illustrating the recommendation resulting from 
the hearing.  Please take a few minutes to review it. 
 
If you feel that the hearing held was not fair and impartial, you have the right to appeal the 
Expulsion Hearing Officer's recommendation to the school Board.  This process, however, is 
limited to the Board conducting a review of the hearing officer's recommendation, and offering 
you an opportunity to present your criticism of that recommendation.  It will not be another 
hearing at which evidence supporting or refuting the charges against your child is gathered and 
presented. 
 
If you decide to appeal, please notify me so that I can place you on the agenda.  It is indeed 
unfortunate that is has been necessary to take this action. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
Superintendent of Schools 
 
 
 
Enclosures 
 
cc:       Board of Trustees 

         School File



 

3740P-13 

 

 
 
SENT TO PARENT ALONG WITH LETTER #6 ONLY 
 
           Letter #7 
SCHOOL DISTRICT #411 EXPULSION PROCEDURE BOARD OF TRUSTEE 

APPEALS 

 
 
 
The School District #411 Board of Trustees has given full authority to an expulsion hearing 
officer to conduct a hearing at which a student may oppose any attempt to deny said student 
the right to attend school.  Once the hearing has been held, the expulsion hearing officer 
submits to the Board of Trustees a recommendation advocating or opposing the student's 
expulsion.  In the event the school administration, the student, or the student's representative 
opposes the hearing officer's recommendation, the school administration, student, and/or 
representative may appeal the action to the Board of Trustees.  However, it is important to 
note that any appeal must be undertaken on the basis that you feel the hearing officer's 
procedure was incorrect, incomplete, or in some manner inappropriate.  This is not another 
attempt to rehear all the evidence presented at the hearing, and thus, neither you nor the 
hearing officer should expect to present such evidence. 
 
The Board of Trustees may ask you the following questions: 
 

1. Were you given notice before the hearing that the student in question had certain 
rights, among which were 

a. Knowledge of the grounds for the expulsion 
b. the time and place you could appear to contest the action 
c. the right of the student to be represented by council 
d. the right of the student to submit evidence on his/her behalf 
e. the right of the student to produce witnesses on his/her behalf 
f. the right to cross-examine any adult witness who may appear against 

him/her. 
 

2. Were you asked if you had received such notification in sufficient time to allow you 
to prepare your response to the charges? 

 
If the answer to any question was no, the Board of Trustees may ask you, "Were you told you 
could request a delay in the expulsion procedure in order for you to prepare your response?" 
 
If the answers to all of these questions were yes, the Board of Trustees may ask you the 
following questions: 
 



 

3740P-14 

 

3. What specifically do you feel that the expulsion hearing officer did incorrectly, 
incompletely, or inappropriately in conducting the hearing? 

 
 
 
 

   
   
 Letter #7 Continued 

 
 

4. Is there anything else you would like to discuss with the Board about the manner 
in which the hearing officer conducted the hearing? 

 
Once you have had the opportunity to state that which you wish to discuss, the Board of 
Trustees may ask certain questions of you or the hearing officer, or they may ask you to 
leave.  They will deliberate on the question of the student's expulsion and will make a 
decision later in the evening.  You will be notified of that decision within the next twenty-
four hours. 
 

 
The Board of Trustees does not allow electronic recording devices in its executive 
session.  Please respect this prohibition. 
 
If you have questions about any part of the expulsion process, please discuss them with the 
administrator who will escort you into the Board hearing room. 
  



 

3740P-15 

 

 
 
SEND TO PARENT FROM DISTRICT 
OFFICE AFTER BOARD APPEAL (IF 
EXPULSION RECOMMENDED) 
 
BOARD RECOMMENDING EXPULSION 
 
[Place on District Letterhead] 
 
Dear                     : 

 
 
 
Letter #8

 
This letter is to inform you that the School District #411 Board of Trustees confirmed the
Expulsion Hearing Officer's 
recommendation that your son/daughter, 
from school for violation of the school 
district policies. 

, be expelled

 
Since              is under the age of 16, his name and information will be remanded to the custody 
of the courts in the manner prescribed by law. 
 
If              wishes to earn his/her way back into public school, he/she should meet with me to 
discuss his/her options. Please call my office and speak to my secretary to set up an appointment 
for an entry interview. 
 
                     should make arrangements with the school principal to check in his/her books and
get his/her personal property checked out of       School.  In the meantime,   

should not visit                            School or be on the campus of any other school in the district 
unless given permission by the school principal.                       will not be allowed to participate 
in any school activities during the term of the expulsion from school.  A violation of this
directive could have a definite bearing on ’s reinstatement at a later date.

 
If you have any questions about the expulsion or the possibility of reinstatement, please feel free 
to call this office at 733-6900. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
Superintendent of Schools 
 
 
cc:       Principal  



 

3740P-16 

 Student File 
 
 
 
 
  



 

3740P-17 

SEND TO PARENT FROM DISTRICT OFFICE AFTER BOARD APPEAL (IF NO 
EXPULSION RECOMMENDED) 
 
BOARD RECOMMENDS NO EXPULSION      Letter #9 
 
 
[Place on District Letterhead] 
 
 
 
Dear               : 
 
This letter is to inform you that the School District #411 Board of Trustees denied the Expulsion 
Hearing Officer’s recommendation that your son/daughter,                    , be expelled from school 
for continued violation of school district disciplinary policies. 
 
Denying the Expulsion Hearing Officer’s request does not excuse any violation recorded for 
your son/daughter. It simply means that due to circumstances related to the situation, the 
violations do not warrant expulsion from school at this time. 
 
                           should return to his/her school by                 , 20     to continue his/her studies. If 
you have any questions about the expulsion process or the consequences of future violations, 
please feel free to call this office at 733-6900. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
Superintendent of Schools 
 
 
cc:       Board of Trustees 
 School File



 

3740P-18 

SENT TO PROSECUTING ATTORNEY (FOR STUDENTS UNDER THE AGE OF 16) 
Letter # 10 

 
[Place on District Letterhead] 
 
 
 
(Date) 
 
 
(Prosecutor Name) 
County Prosecutor 
Twin Falls County 
P.O. Box 126 
Twin Falls, Idaho 83303 
 
Dear (Prosecutor): 
 
At the (Month/Day/Year) Board of Trustee’s meeting, the Board expelled       (#) 
students for violation of school district policies.  This letter is to officially notify you of 
this proceeding.  The expelled students are: 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Name 

 
 
 
DOB 

 
 
 
Gender 

 
 
 
Parent/ 
Address 

 
Length of 
Expulsion 

 
Reason for 
Expulsion 

 
 
 
School 

       

       

       

 
 
 
If you have any questions about the proceedings, please contact us.  Thank you for 
your help. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
Superintendent of Schools 
 
cc: Chief Juvenile Probation Officer  
      TFSD Dropout Prevention Coordinator 



PROCEDURE TITLE:       High School Graduation   PROCEDURE NO: 2700P 
                                Requirements     PAGE 1 of 8 
 

 2700P-1 (TFSD & ISBA Winter 2021 Update) 

Twin Falls and Canyon Ridge H.S.  
Graduation Requirements 

Content Area  
Core of Instruction 36 credits  (minimum) 

Electives 16 credits  (minimum) 
Total Credits 52 credits (minimum) 

Language Arts 
(English – 8 credits and 

Speech – 1 credit) 

9 credits 
● Classes must be taken over 4 years and must include:  

o English 9/Honors English 9 - 2 credits 
o English 10/Honors English 10 – 2 credits 
o English 11/Advanced Placement English 11 – 2 credits 
o English 12/ Advanced Placement English 12 – 2 credits 
o Speech – 1 credit 

Mathematics 6 credits 
● Algebra I (or meets Algebra I standards) – 2 credits  

AND 
● Geometry (or meets Geometry standards) – 2 credits 

OR 
● Integrated Math I – 2 credits  

AND 
● Integrated Math II – 2 credits 

The combination of Integrated Math I and II meet the standards of 
Algebra and Geometry 
 

● Secondary Mathematics of the student’s choice – 2 credits 
 

● Dual credit engineering and computer science courses aligned to 
the state standards for grades 9 through 12, including AP 
Computer Science and dual credit Computer Science courses may 
be counted as a mathematics credit if the student has completed 
Algebra II (or equivalent integrated mathematics) standards.  

 
● Students are encouraged to take math their senior year. 
 
 *Students who choose to take Computer Science and Dual 

Credit Engineering may not concurrently count such 
courses as both a mathematics and science credit 

Science 6 credits 
● 4 credits shall be laboratory sciences 

Social Studies 
(Must include U.S. History – 4 

credits, and American 
Government – 2 credits) 

7 credits 
● Students must pass the U.S. citizenship test 
● History (9th grade) – 1 credit 
● U.S. History (10th grade) – 2 credits 
● U.S. History/Advanced Placement U.S. History (11th grade) 2 credits 
● American Government/ Advanced Placement American Government 

(12th grade) 2 credits 



 2700P-2 (TFSD & ISBA Winter 2021 Update) 

Marketing Economics/Macro 
Economics 

1 credit 

Humanities 
(Interdisciplinary Humanities, 

Fine Arts or Foreign 
Language) 

2 credits 
● 2 consecutive years of world language are encouraged 
● The following courses will satisfy the two (2) humanities credits: 

2D & 3D Design, Pottery I II & III, Digital Imaging, Bella 
Voce, Concert Choir, Chamber Singers, Symphony Band, 
Orchestra, World Language, Creative Writing I & II, 
Drawing & Painting I, II, III, and IV, Studio Art III and IV, 
Digital Art and Design I, II, III, and IV, Wind Ensemble, 
Varsity Band, Theater I, II, and III, Studio V, Production 
and Design.  

Computer Courses 2 Credits 
● Beginning Office (or meets the Beginning Office standards) 1 credit 
● The second credit may be earned from a list of courses determined by 

the principals and department leaders. The list of courses will be 
published each year in the registration handbook. 

 
Health and PE 

   
3 credits  

● Health – 1 credit 
● Each student shall receive a minimum of one (1) class period on 

psychomotor cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR) training as 
outlined in the American Heart Association (AHA) Guidelines 
for CPR to include the proper utilization of an automatic external 
defibrillator (AED) as part of the Health course. 

● PE – 2 credits 
● One PE credit must be in 10th, 11th, or 12th grade 
● Students participating in one (1) season in any sport recognized 

by the Idaho High School Activities Association or club sport 
recognized by the local school district, or 18 weeks of a sport 
recognized by the local school district may choose to substitute 
participation up to one (1) credit of physical education. 

Electives 16 credits 
9th grade transitions course (may be listed as different names at each high 

school) – 2 credits 
Postsecondary 
Readiness Plan 

4-Year Learning Plan  
This should typically be completed by the end of 8th grade 

    
Senior Project Required to include an oral presentation and written report by the end of 

grade 12. 
ISAT Pass the ISAT with a score of Proficient or Advanced in Reading, Math, 

and Language Usage. 
 
 
 
 
 



 2700P-3 (TFSD & ISBA Winter 2021 Update) 

Magic Valley H.S. 
Graduation Requirements 

 

Content Area  
Core of Instruction 29 credits  (minimum) 

Electives 17 credits  (minimum) 
Total Credits 46 credits (minimum) 

Language Arts 
(English – 8 credits and 

Speech – 1 credit) 

9 credits 
(Speech credit can be obtained through other courses that meet the state 
speech requirement as approved by the local district.) 

Mathematics 6 credits 
Including courses that meet Algebra I and Geometry standards; 
2 credits must be taken in last year of high school. 

Science 6 credits 
(4 laboratory sciences) 

Social Studies 
(US History, Economics and 

American Government) 

                         5 credits 
Students must pass the U.S. citizenship test. 

Humanities 
(Interdisciplinary Humanities, 

Fine Arts or Foreign 
Language) 

2 credits 

Health and PE 1 credit of Health 
Postsecondary 
Readiness Plan 

4-Year Learning Plan  
This should typically be completed by the end of 8th grade 

    
Senior Project Required to include an oral presentation and written report by the end of 

grade 12. 
ISAT Pass the ISAT with a score of Proficient or Advanced in Reading, Math, 

and Language Usage. 
 
Credits Obtained by Demonstrating Mastery 

Students may achieve credits by demonstrating mastery of a subject’s content standards as 
defined and approved by the District. 

The Superintendent or designee will appoint a committee to develop a process whereby students 
may be awarded credit upon having demonstrated mastery of a subject’s content standards. 

Course Load 
 
All students will be required to register for a full course load per semester to be eligible for a 
diploma.  
 
In hardship cases, a parent/guardian may petition the Board or designee, through the high school 
principal, to allow his/her son/daughter to take less than the required number of classes during 
any given semester. 



 2700P-4 (TFSD & ISBA Winter 2021 Update) 

 
Middle School Credit 
 
In instances where students take required high school courses in middle school, credit will be 
awarded for those courses per Policy 2607. 
 
Senior Project 
 
A student shall complete a senior project that includes a research paper and oral presentation by 
the end of grade twelve (12). Senior projects may be multi-year projects, group or individual 
projects, or approved pre-internship or school-to-work internship programs at the discretion of 
the District. The project must include elements of research, development of a thesis using 
experiential learning or integrated project based learning experiences, and a presentation of the 
outcome. Additional requirements for the senior project are the discretion of the District. 
 
As detailed in the Senior Project Guidelines, completion of a postsecondary certificate or degree 
at the time of high school graduation or an approved pre-internship or internship program may be 
used to satisfy this requirement.  
 
Idaho Standards Achievement Test (ISAT) 
 
Students must take the Idaho Standards Achievement Test (ISAT) during a student’s 11th grade 
year and (starting with the class of 2026) receive a proficient score as defined by Idaho Standards 
Achievement Test’s Achievement Level Descriptors in Reading, Math, and Language Usage. 

If the student does not attain the required score during their 11th grade year, they will 
take the Idaho Standards Achievement Test (ISAT) in their 12th grade year and must 
receive the proficient score, as defined above unless the student is exempt under the 
following conditions: 

1. The student has an Individualized Education Program (IEP) that outlines alternate 
requirements for graduation or adaptations are recommended on the test; or 

2. The student is considered an Limited English Proficiency (LEP) student through a score 
determined on a language proficiency test and has been in an LEP program for three (3) 
academic years or less; or 

3. The student received a proficient or advanced score on an exit exam from another state 
that requires a standards-based exam for graduation. Such state exit exams must be 
approved by the state board of education, measure skills at the tenth grade level or above, 
and be in comparable subject areas to the ISAT; or 

4. Upon appeal to the board of trustees for an alternate measure(s) to demonstrate 
proficiency, the student successfully met the criteria established by the board of trustees. 

Before appealing to the District for an alternate measure, the student must be:  

1. Enrolled in a special education program and have an IEP, or 
2. Enrolled in an LEP program for three (3) academic years or less, or  
3. Currently enrolled in the fall semester of the senior year or later. 



 2700P-5 (TFSD & ISBA Winter 2021 Update) 

 
The alternative must contain multiple measures of student achievement. 

1. The alternative must be aligned, at a minimum, to tenth grade state content standards for 
the subject matter in question. 

2. The alternative must be valid and reliable. 
3. At least ninety percent (90%) of the criteria of the alternative, or combination of 

measures, must be based on academic proficiency and performance. 
 

Civics Test 
 
All secondary students must successfully pass the civics test or alternate path. "Civics Test" as 
used herein means the 100 questions used by officers of the United States citizenship and 
immigration services as a basis for selecting the questions posed to applicants for naturalization. 
 
The District will determine the method and manner in which to administer the civics test. A 
student may take the civics test, in whole or in part, at any time after enrolling in grade 7 and 
may repeat the test as often as necessary to pass the test. The District will document on the 
student's transcript that the student has passed the civics test.  
 
The applicability of this requirement for students who receive special education services will be 
governed by the student’s Individualized Education Plan. 
 
Waiver of Requirement 
 
Graduation requirements generally will not be waived under any circumstances.  However, in 
rare and unique hardship circumstances, the Principal may recommend and the Superintendent 
may approve minor deviations from the graduation requirements. 
 
Credit Calculation 

 
Credits toward graduation requirements cannot be counted more than once for meeting the 
minimum requirements. 
 
Alternative Programs 
 
Credits received from an accredited secondary school, an accredited correspondence course 
institution, or an accredited post-secondary institution will be accepted towards the fulfillment of 
Twin Falls School District graduation requirements. A maximum of six (6) credits from an 
accredited correspondence course used to meet elective credit requirements and/or for credit 
retrieval may be applied towards fulfillment of the Twin Falls School District graduation 
requirements. 
 
Credit toward graduation requirements may be granted for planned learning experiences from 
accredited programs, such as summer school, university courses, correspondence courses, and 
online/virtual courses. 
 



 2700P-6 (TFSD & ISBA Winter 2021 Update) 

 
Credit for work experience may be offered when the work program is a part of and supervised by 
the school. 
 
All classes attempted at District high schools and all acceptable transfer credits shall be recorded 
on the transcript. All grades earned, including failures and retakes, shall be recorded as such and 
utilized in the calculation of Grade Point Average (GPA) and class rank. Credit shall be awarded 
only once regardless of repetition of the course. 
 
Class Rank (Grade Point Average) 
 
Class Rank is compiled from semester grades as generated by PowerSchool. 
 
Early Graduation or Flexible Schedule 
A student may, at the student’s option and upon notification to the student’s school, be relieved 
from completing their remaining high school graduation requirements and apply for a flexible 
schedule or graduate early if the student: 

 
1. Is at least 16 years of age; 
2. Maintains a cumulative 3.5 grade point average; 
3. Obtains permission from a parent/guardian, if under the age of 18; 
4. Achieves a college and career readiness score as defined by the State Board of    

Education; 
5. Files the following with the school: 

 
A. Notification of their intent to take a flexible schedule OR graduate early; 
B. The student’s participation portfolio defined in Idaho Code 33-6101 consisting of a 

description of a student’s nonacademic and co-curricular activities including, but not 
limited to, student government, sports, music ensembles, theater, clubs, organizations, 
work, internships, and volunteering. A participation portfolio should also include any 
leadership positions a student holds in nonacademic activities; and 

C. An essay of at least one page explaining why the student wishes to have a flexible 
schedule which must include the future plans using the flexible schedule OR early 
graduation. 

 
6. Completes the following: 

 
A. The required civics test; and 
B. The economics credit, government credits, and senior project required to graduate. A 

student’s senior project may describe the student’s experience in achieving a college 
and career readiness score and a detailed explanation of the student’s future plan. 

 
Students eligible for a flexible schedule may be relieved from high school graduation 
requirements in order to: 
 



 2700P-7 (TFSD & ISBA Winter 2021 Update) 

1. Take elective courses, career technical education programs, or courses selected by the 
student which are available within the District; 

2. Participate in apprenticeships or internships; 
3. Act as a tutor at any grade level; or 
4. Engage in such other activities identified by the Board. 

 
The building administrator will approve or deny the student’s flexible schedule. A student who is 
granted a flexible schedule must adhere to the plan submitted to the school as a part of their 
eligibility. Students who are under 18 may modify their plan with the approval of the student’s 
parent/guardian.  
 
A student who completes all of the graduation requirements set forth by the District and the State 
Department of Education prior to the completion of eight semesters of school attendance in 
grades 9-12 may petition the Superintendent and the Board for early graduation by submitting an 
“Early Graduation Application Form” to the Superintendent through the building principal. The 
Superintendent shall submit the application to the Board for endorsement and approval at the end 
of the quarter preceding the requested graduation date. 
 
Senior students who will complete all required credits and elective requirements have the option 
to request to graduate mid-term of their senior year. The student must complete an “Early 
Graduation Application Form” no later than three months in advance of their intended graduation 
date, which allows time for the application to be presented to the Board. Students who choose the 
mid-term graduation option may participate in all graduation activities and will receive their 
diploma at the same time as regularly enrolled students 
 
The Superintendent is authorized to create any procedures necessary to assist students to achieve 
early graduation or flexible schedule as well as create incentives for participation in any early 
graduation program. Students who opt for a flexible schedule may apply for Advanced 
Opportunities funding. Existing programs providing incentives to complete coursework early are 
described in Policy 2435 Advanced Opportunities. 
 
Failure to Complete 
  
If a student fails a class required by the Twin Falls School District and/or the State Board of 
Education, the student must repeat the class successfully before credit will be granted. 
 
At the beginning of a senior student’s second semester, if he/she lacks sufficient credits to 
graduate with his/her class, the student and/or parent should be informed in writing. The 
administration should attempt to supply this notification within 30 days following the end of the 
first semester of the student’s senior year. 
 
Students who do not meet the necessary requirements for graduation may return to their 
respective high school and enroll only in the classes that they need to graduate. 
 

♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ 
 



 2700P-8 (TFSD & ISBA Winter 2021 Update) 

Cross Reference: 2435 Advanced Opportunities 
 2607 Awarding High School Credit for Courses Taken Before Ninth 

Grade 
 2710 High School Graduation Requirement – Alternative 
 
Legal Reference:   I.C. § 33 4601, et seq. Advanced Opportunities 
    § 33-6101  Opportunities for College and Career Ready Students 
 IDAPA 08.02.01.350 Early Graduation 
 IDAPA 08.02.03.105 High School Graduation Requirements 
 IDAPA 08.02.03.107 Middle Level Credit System 
  
Procedure History 
ADOPTED: 8/11/14  
TFSD & ISBA 
REVISED: 3/14/16  
 9/12/16 
 7/25/18 
 5/13/19 
 03/9/20 
 7/13/20 
 7/12/21 
 4/11/22 
 8/08/22 



 
 
POLICY TITLE: 

 
Relationship Abuse and Sexual Assault 
Prevention and Response 
 

 
POLICY NO: 3285   

PAGE 1 of 3 
 

 

 3285-1 (ISBA 2014) 

The Board endeavors to take steps to prevent and respond to known instances of relationship 
abuse and sexual assault.  Such conduct is strictly prohibited and shall not be tolerated on 
District premises, including, but not be limited to buildings, facilities, and grounds on the District 
campuses, school buses, and District parking areas. Moreover, such conduct will not be tolerated 
at any District sponsored activities, regardless of location. However, any instance, regardless of 
location or connection with District operations, that impacts the educational process or any 
school-related activity is also subject to this policy. 
 
Relationship abuse includes the intentional use of physical, sexual, verbal, or emotional abuse or 
violence to harm, threaten, intimidate, or control another person in a current or past dating 
relationship.  Sexual assault includes sexual violence, sexual abuse, sexual stalking, and 
rape.  The majority of these instances are dealt with utilizing Procedure 3085P Title IX Sexual 
Harassment Grievance Procedure as described below. If the Title IX Coordinator determines that 
an alleged infraction does not fall within the scope of Procedure 3085P to address, it may be 
addressed through this policy. 
 
Students whose behavior is found to be in violation of this policy will be subject to discipline, up 
to and including expulsion. Third parties whose behavior is found to be in violation of this policy 
shall be subject to appropriate sanctions as determined and imposed by the Superintendent or 
Board. 
 
Students, staff members, or third parties may also be referred to law enforcement officials.  
 
Any of the District’s employees who have reason to believe that a child under the age of 18 years 
of age has been abused, abandoned, or neglected or has been subjected to conditions which 
would reasonably result in abuse, abandonment, or neglect, the school shall follow appropriate 
reporting requirements pursuant to the Child Protective Act.  Employees shall also report the 
incident to the District’s Title IX coordinator or deputies, as described in Policy 3085. 
   
The Superintendent is hereby directed to develop administrative procedures to implement this 
policy while recognizing that some violations of this policy may fall within the scope of 
Procedure 3085P Title IX Sexual Harassment Grievance Procedure.  Procedures shall include 
descriptions of prohibited conduct, the definition of abuse pursuant to the Child Protective Act, 
reporting and investigative procedures, prevention and response procedures, and provisions to 
ensure notice of this policy is provided to students.   
 
The Board shall review this policy annually. 
 
Addressing Sexual Harassment/Assault 
 
Any person wishing to report an instance of sexual harassment/assault may do so in accordance 
with Policy 3085. 
 



 3285-2 (ISBA 2014) 

If the Title IX Coordinator determines that an alleged infraction does not fall within the scope of 
Procedure 3085P to address, it may be addressed through this policy by following the Uniform 
Grievance Procedure. The District shall maintain the confidentiality of all parties involved, as far 
as possible, and may notify individuals of what information may need to be disclosed in the 
course of the investigation, to whom, and why.  The District shall take steps to prevent retaliation 
toward individuals who file a complaint.  The District shall immediately act to provide 
supportive measures, without waiting for the completion of the investigation, and shall notify the 
individual of any services available to assist him or her.   
 
Such supportive measures during or following an investigation may include: 
 

1. Providing an effective escort to ensure the complainant can move safely between classes 
and activities; 

2. Ensuring that the complainant and the perpetrator or alleged perpetrator do not share 
classes, extracurricular activities, or a school;  

3. Provision of victim services such as medical, counseling, and academic support services; 
4. Arranging for the complainant to have extra time to complete or retake a class without 

academic penalty; 
5. Disciplinary action against the perpetrator; 
6. Counseling for the perpetrator; 
7. Conducting training with a group of students if, for example, the sexual violence created 

a hostile environment within a particular grade level or on a sports team; 
8. Ensuring the school has access to a counselor trained to assist victims of sexual violence; 
9. Training employees on how to handle reports of sexual violence; 
10. Informing students about the problem of sexual violence and how to seek assistance; 
11. Conducting bystander intervention and sexual assault prevention programs with students; 
12. Involving a law enforcement official or school resource officer when the behavior might 

be illegal; 
13. Issuing official statements that the District will not tolerate and will respond to any 

incidents of sexual violence; and 
14. Assessing the school climate to determine whether the campus is free of sexual violence 

and determining what steps should be taken to address any problems. 
 
Following the investigation, to the extent possible and not in violation of any applicable law, the 
complainant shall be notified of the outcome of the complaint, including whether the 
investigation determined that the alleged conduct occurred, remedies being offered to the 
complainant, any sanctions imposed on the perpetrator that directly relate to the complainant, 
and any other steps taken to eliminate the hostile environment or prevent a recurrence. 
 

♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ 
 
Cross References: 4120 Grievance Procedure 

 3085 Sexual Harassment, Discrimination and Retaliation Policy 
 3085P Title IX Sexual Harassment Grievance Procedure, Requirements 

and Definitions 
 



 3285-3 (ISBA 2014) 

Legal References: I.C. § 16-1601 et seq.  Child Protective Act 
 I.D.A.P.A. 08.02.03.160  Safe Environment and Discipline 
 
 
 
Policy History 
ADOPTED: 10/13/14 
ISBA 
REVISED: 1/11/21  



 
 
POLICY TITLE: 

 
Hazing, Harassment, Intimidation, 
Bullying, Cyber Bullying 
 

 
POLICY NO: 3295   

PAGE 1 of 2 
 

 

 3295-1 (ISBA) 

The Board of Trustees is committed to providing a positive and productive learning and working 
environment.  As defined in Procedure 3295P, hazing, harassment, intimidation, cyber bullying, 
or bullying, by students or third parties is strictly prohibited and shall not be tolerated in the 
District.  This includes actions on school grounds, school property, school buses, at school bus 
stops, at school-sponsored events and activities, and through the use of electronic technology or 
electronic communication equipment on school computers, networks, forums, or mailing lists 
and actions at locations outside of those listed above that can be reasonably expected to materially 
and substantially interfere with or disrupt the educational environment of the school or impinge on 
the rights of other students at school.   
 
The Board expects all students to treat each other with civility and respect and not to engage in 
behavior that is harmful to another student or the property of another student.  The Board expects 
students to conduct themselves in keeping with their level of maturity, with a proper regard for 
the rights and welfare of other students, for school personnel, and for the educational purpose 
underlying all school activities. 
 
Discipline 
 
Students whose behavior is found to be in violation of this policy will be subject to discipline 
and graduated consequences, up to and including expulsion consistent with the Board’s policy on 
student discipline.  Third parties whose behavior is found to be in violation of this policy shall be 
subject to appropriate sanctions as determined and imposed by the Superintendent or Board. 
 
Students or third parties may also be referred to law enforcement officials. 
 
Notification 
 
Information on the District’s bullying policy and relevant procedures shall be provided in writing 
at the beginning of each school year to school personnel, parents, and students in the District and 
included in student handbooks.  Information provided to students shall be provided in a manner 
appropriate to the student's age, grade, and level of academic achievement. 
 
Procedures 
 
The Superintendent is directed to develop administrative procedures to implement this policy.  
Procedures shall include descriptions of prohibited conduct, reporting and investigative 
procedures, rules for disciplining students who violate this policy, and provisions to ensure 
notice of this policy is provided to students, teachers, and third parties. 
 
Reporting 
 
The District shall annually report bullying incidents to, and in the manner and on the form 
provided by, the State Department of Education. 



 3295-2 (ISBA) 

The Board shall review this policy annually. 
 

♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ 
 
Cross Reference:  3330 Student Discipline 
 3295P Hazing, Harassment, Intimidation, Bullying, Cyber Bullying 
 5265 Employee Responsibilities Regarding Student Harassment, 

Intimidation, and Bullying 
 
Legal References: I.C. § 18-917 Hazing 
 I.C. § 18-917A Student Harassment – Intimidation – Bullying 
 I.C. § 33-205 Denial of School Attendance 
 I.C. § 33-512 Governance of Schools 
 I.C. § 33-1631 Requirements for Harassment, Intimidation, and Bullying 

Information and Professional Development 
 I.C. § 67-5909 Acts Prohibited 
 20 U.S.C. § 1681, et seq. Title IX of the Educational Amendments 
 34 CFR Part 106 Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex in Education 

Programs or Activities Receiving Federal Financial Assistance 
 I.D.A.P.A. 08.02.03.160 Safe Environment and Discipline 
 
Policy History 
ADOPTED: 8/11/14 
ISBA 
REVISED: 10/12/15 



 
 
POLICY 
TITLE: 

 
Prohibition of Tobacco Possession 
and Use 

 
POLICY NO: 3305 

PAGE 1 of 1 
 

 

 3305-1 (ISBA 2013) 

The Board recognizes that tobacco use by students presents a health and safety hazard 
that can have serious consequences for both users and nonusers and the school 
environment.  
 
The Board prohibits tobacco use and possession by students at any time in a school 
building or on any school property, bus, van, or vehicle that is owned, leased, or 
controlled by the District. Tobacco use and possession by students is also prohibited at 
school-sponsored activities that are held off school property.  
 
The District may initiate discipline according to the District’s Student Discipline policy 
and/or prosecution of a student who possesses or uses tobacco in violation of this policy. 
 
Definition 
 
For the purposes of this policy, tobacco use shall be defined as the use and/or possession 
of a lighted or unlighted cigarette, cigar, pipe, smokeless tobacco in any form, and other 
smoking products specifically including electronic cigarettes, electronic nicotine delivery 
systems, or vaporizer smoking devices.  
 

♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ 
 
Cross Reference: 3321 Student Drug, Alcohol, and Tobacco Use 
 3330 Student Discipline 
 
Legal Reference:  I.C. §39-5703 Possession, Distribution, or Use by a Minor 
 
Policy History 
ADOPTED: 12/9/13 
ISBA 
REVISED: 8/11/14 
  9/14/15 



 
 
POLICY TITLE: 

 
Student Drug, Alcohol and Tobacco Use 

 
POLICY NO:  3321 

PAGE 1 of 5 
 

 

3321-1 (EMT 2012) 

PHILOSOPHY 
 
It is the Idaho Legislature’s intent that parental involvement in all aspects of a child’s education 
in Idaho public schools be part of each District’s policy.  Drug prevention programs and 
counseling for students, including those over the age of eighteen (18) who continue to be 
enrolled, under the custody and care of the schools are included in this intent. 
 
The Board of Trustees recognizes that student use of chemical substances, including alcohol, 
tobacco, nicotine, and e-cigarettes, is a serious problem of utmost concern in our society.  Drug, 
alcohol, and tobacco, and nicotine use is detrimental to a state of well-being and undermines the 
aim of education, which is to enable individuals to develop to their full potential.  The District 
seeks to ensure the highest standards of learning in the classroom and recognizes that use of 
chemical substances—including alcohol, tobacco, nicotine, and controlled substances—creates 
educational, economic, and legal problems. 
 
Non-Students 
Law enforcement officials will be notified of non-students on school property using, 
possessing, or distributing a controlled substance/drug. 
 
DEFINITIONS 
 
“Controlled substances” include, but are not limited to, opiates, opium derivatives, 
hallucinogenic substances, including cocaine and cannabis and synthetic equivalents of the 
substances contained in the plant, any material, compound, mixture or preparation with 
substances having a depressant effect on the central nervous system, and stimulants. 
 
“Course of conduct” involves a pattern or series of acts over a period of time, however short, 
evidencing a continuity of purpose. Course of conduct does not include constitutionally and 
statutorily protected activity. 
 
“Drug” includes any alcohol or malt beverage, any tobacco or e-cigarette product, any nicotine 
product or nicotine delivery system, any controlled substance, any illegal substance, any abused 
substance, any substance which is intended to alter mood, and any medication not prescribed by 
a physician for the student in possession of the medication.  
 
“Tobacco and Nicotine” includes lighted or unlighted cigarettes, cigars, pipes, smokeless tobacco 
in any form, other smoking products, electronic cigarettes, nicotine delivery systems, or 
vaporizer smoking devices. 
 
“Intentionally harass” means a knowing and willful course of conduct directed at a specific 
student which seriously alarms, annoys, threatens, or intimidates the student and which serves no 
legitimate purpose. The course of conduct must be such as would cause a reasonable person to 
suffer substantial emotional distress.  



3321-2 (EMT 2012) 

 
“Reasonable suspicion” means an act of judgment by a District employee or independent 
contractor that leads to a reasonable and prudent belief that a student is in violation of this policy 
or the “use” or “under the influence” provisions of Idaho Code Section 37-2732C, which defines 
controlled substances. Such act of judgment is based on the employee’s or independent 
contractor’s training in recognizing the signs and symptoms of alcohol and controlled substance 
use. The fact that a student has previously disclosed use of a controlled substance will not be 
deemed a factor in determining reasonable suspicion at a later date. 
 
“School premises” includes all buildings, facilities, and property owned or leased by the District, 
school buses and other school vehicles, and the location of any school-sponsored activity or 
function. School premises also include locations near the school campus when the student is on 
their way to and from school.  
 
POLICY 
 
Students attending school in this District will not use, possess, sell, buy, or distribute drugs. 
Drugs are all controlled chemical substances including, but not limited toincluding alcohol, 
tobacco nicotine, controlled substances, as well as or related paraphernalia, on school premises.  
 
Any students will be in violation of this e District’s drug, alcohol, and tobacco use policy when: 
 
1. He or she is They are on school premises, evidencing behavior that creates a reasonable 

suspicion that he or she they may be illegally under the influence of drugs; 

2. He or she is They admits to using, possessing, selling, buying, or distributing drugs on 
school premises; 

3. He or she is They are found to use, possess, sell, buy, or distribute drugs, or related 
paraphernalia, on school premises;  

4. He or she is They are found to possess drugs, or related paraphernalia, or to have such 
substances on his or her person, or in his or her locker, vehicle, or other property on 
school premises;  

5. He or she is They are found to knowingly attempt to use, sell, buy, or distribute drugs or 
related paraphernalia on school premises; and/or 

6. He or she is They are found to knowingly be present when drugs or related paraphernalia 
are being used, sold, bought, or distributed on school premises. 

ALCOHOL OR CONTROLLED SUBSTANCES:  
I. NON-DISCIPLINARY PROCEDURES 

A. VOLUNTARY DISCLOSURE/SELF REPORTING 
 
Any student who voluntarily discloses on their own volition to professional staff members that 
they have been or are using or being are under the influence of drugs, or who turn in drugs to a 



3321-3 (EMT 2012) 

staff member for disposal alcohol or any controlled substances before he or she they are is 
reasonably suspected to be in violation of the law and this policy will be provided anonymity to 
the extent that: 
 
1. The student’s disclosure is held confidential on a faculty need-to-know basis; and 
 
2. Notification of the student’s disclosure and availability of counseling for the student is 

provided to the student’s parent/guardian.  
 
If a student voluntarily requests assistance from school officials with regard to a tobacco, 
alcohol, controlled substance/drug problem, there will be no discipline of the student provided 
that a staff member has not reasonably suspected the student to be in violation of the law and 
this policy.  
 
In such cases: 
 

1. The student will meet with a school counselor, parent(s), and/or legal guardian(s) to 
discuss the problems which have been identified and develop an appropriate intervention 
program such as: 

a. In-School interventions: peer support groups, contractual agreements, 
counseling, and support teachers. 

b. Out-of-school intervention/treatment: assessment by a community agency, 
private counseling, outpatient treatment, inpatient treatment. (any costs will be 
borne by the parent(s) and or legal guardian(s).) 

c. Community-based information and support: Alcoholics Anonymous, Narcotics 
Anonymous, and education programs through community agencies. 

d. Family-based information and support: Developing Capable People, Parent 
Project, Al-Anon, Ala-Teen, community agency programs, and contractual 
agreements.  

2. Subsequent voluntary requests will automatically result in a referral to the school 
counselor. A formal chemical dependency assessment will be strongly recommended. 

3. If the student and/or parent(s) or legal guardian(s) refuse counseling and/or assessment, 
they will be reminded that the use, possession, distribution of, or being under the 
influence of drugs on school premises will subject the student to school disciplinary 
measures and/or citations issued by law enforcement officials.   

 
B. REFERRAL BY A STAFF MEMBER, PARENT, OR PEER 
 
If a student is exhibiting signs of possible substance use (i.e., increased tardiness, absenteeism, 
lowered class performance, outbursts in class, apathy, increased complaints of illness, etc.), the 
staff member, parent, or peer should notify a building administrator of his or her concerns by 
filling out a Student Referral form documenting the observed behaviors. 
 
Upon referral, in conjunction with the school counselor, the building administrator will 
complete an evaluation of the student and make recommendations to the student and to the 
parent/legal guardian. The student will meet with a school counselor and parent(s), and/or legal 



3321-4 (EMT 2012) 

guardian(s) to discuss the problems which have been identified and develop an appropriate 
program for student involvement such as those detailed in the Voluntary Disclosure section of 
this policy. 
 
If the student and/or parent(s)/legal guardian(s) refuse services, refer to I.A.3.  
 
II. DISCIPLINARY PROCEDURES 
 
ALCOHOL OR CONTROLLED SUBSTANCES: REFERRAL TO LAW 
ENFORCEMENT 
 
Once a student is reasonably suspected of being in violation of the law and this policy regarding 
alcohol or controlled substances, regardless of any previous voluntary disclosure, the building 
principal or designee will immediately notify the student’s parent or guardian and report the 
incident to the local law enforcement agency. 
 
Step 1. Any student exhibiting inappropriate behavior that suggests “using” or “being under the 
influence” of drugs alcohol or controlled substances or who is reported by another student to  
have been using drugs or under the influence of drugs when on or near District property during 
school hours or at a school-sponsored activity, will be immediately escorted by a District 
employee to an administrative office for interviewing and observation by the principal building 
administrator or designee. The building administrator should document their observations of the 
student. If, in the opinion of the administrator or designee, the student is in violation of this 
policy, a copy of the observation documentation will be placed in the student’s discipline record 
and provided to law enforcement. Except in the case of an emergency, the student will not be left 
unattended and will not be allowed to leave the school premises.  
 
The  principal or designee, and/or any other employee having observed the student’s behavior 
will document his or her observations of the student;. If, in the opinion of the administrator or 
designee, the student is under the influence and/or in possession of alcohol, tobacco product, or a 
controlled substance/drug, continue with steps 3-8.the documentation will be provided to the law 
enforcement agent, and a copy will be placed in the student’s discipline record. 
 
Step 2. As soon as is practical, the principal building administrator or designee will refer the 
student to notify the law enforcement agency if, upon observing and/or interviewing the student, 
he or she reasonably suspects that the student is using, selling, in possession, or under the 
influence of drugs alcohol or controlled substances. District employees will cooperate fully with 
any law enforcement investigation of a violation of this policy, including, but not limited to, 
providing access to lockers, desks, and other school property, and providing oral and/or written 
statements regarding the relevant events. Depending on the findings of law enforcement, the law 
enforcement official will take the appropriate action, which could include but is not limited to 
issuing a citation.   
 
Step 3. Parent(s) and/or legal guardian(s) will be notified by administration or designee 
regarding the outcome of the observation by phone with the date recorded or by written 
notice within a reasonable time limit. 



3321-5 (EMT 2012) 

 
Step 4: The school administrator will establish the disciplinary action based on the number of 
offenses as described below.  

 
Step 5: The building administrator or designee, within a reasonable time limit, will refer the 
student's name to the school counselor who will be responsible for implementing the 
intervention process.  (Step I. B. above) 
 
Step 6: The student and parent(s) or legal guardian(s) will meet with a building administrator 
and/or school counselor to outline the intervention process. A student behavior contract may be 
utilized by the administrator and must be signed by the student, parent(s) or legal guardian(s), 
and administrator. Violation of the conduct contract may result in additional disciplinary 
measures.Copies will be made available to the parent(s) or legal guardian(s) and school 
counselor. 
 
The student and parent(s) or legal guardian(s) will be expected to follow the recommendation(s) 
of the school counselor or intervention-trained professional. If the student and/or parent(s) or 
legal guardian(s) refuse counseling and/or assessment, they will be reminded by building 
administration that use, possession, distribution, or being under the influence and/or in 
possession of alcohol, tobacco products, or controlled substances/drugs at school or off the 
school grounds at a school function will be subject to school disciplinary measures and/or 
citations issued by law enforcement officials. 
 

1. First Offense The student will receive a minimum three-day suspension, either in school 
or out of school. The suspension length will be three to five (3-5) days, unless 
extraordinary circumstances exist. This suspension may be increased based on the type of 
drug and the seriousness of the infraction. If unable to provide suspension, other 
appropriate disciplinary action may be taken as per Policy 3340 Corrective Action and 
Discipline.  
 
a. The terms of the suspension and/or conduct contract may be modified, at the 
discretion of the building administrator or Superintendent, if a student who has 
violated this policy is willing to voluntarily complete a school-approved drug, alcohol, 
nicotine and/or tobacco education course or support group and/or undergoes 
assessment and treatment for drug, alcohol, nicotine and/or tobacco abuse. 
 

2. Second Offense 
Disciplinary action from the first offense step will be enacted. In addition, if it is determined 
by building administration or law enforcement that the presence of the student is a detriment to 
the safety of the student body or self, the administrator has the option of suspending out of 
school and/or referring the student to the Board of Trustees for expulsion. 
 

3. Third and Subsequent Offenses 
 Upon the third citation being issued (accumulative over grades K-5, 6-8 and again over grades 
9-12), disciplinary actions from previous offense steps will be enacted as determined by the 
building administrator and/or Superintendent. The student may be referred by the school 



3321-6 (EMT 2012) 

administrator to the Superintendent and the Board of Trustees for expulsion.  (See Policy 3740) 
 

4. Distribution of Controlled Substances 
If a student is involved in transmitting, trafficking in or distributing alcohol or controlled or 
dangerous substances on school premises, law enforcement official(s) will be asked to intervene.  
If it is determined that the presence of the student is a detriment to the safety of the student body 
or self, there will be a mandatory recommendation made by the school administrator to the 
Superintendent and the Board of Trustees for expulsion. 
 
 
ENFORCEMENT PROCEDURES 
The procedures to enforce this policy are as follows: 
1. Length of Suspension/Expulsion: Students who violate this policy will initially be 

suspended by the principal building administrator. Suspension for the first offense of this 
policy will be for three to five (3-5) days, unless extraordinary circumstances exist. The 
time period for suspension for the second or third offense will be determined at the 
discretion of the principal building administrator and/or Superintendent.  The principal 
building administrator and/or Superintendent will determine whether or not the 
suspension will be served in school or out of school. 

 
If deemed appropriate by the Superintendent, he or she they may request that the Board 
expel a student who has violated this policy for a second or third offense. 

 
2. Referral to Law Enforcement: The student will be referred to the law enforcement 

agency, if appropriate. If the incident involves using or being under the influence of 
alcohol or a controlled substance, the student will be referred to the local law 
enforcement agency. In all other situations, referral to law enforcement will be at the 
discretion of the building principal or designee. 

 
3. Search and Seizure: As detailed in Policy 3370 and Procedure 3370P, school property 

and equipment owned or controlled by the school (such as lockers, desks and parking 
lots) as well as a student’s person and/or personal effects (e.g., purse, book bag, etc.) may 
be searched whenever a school official has reasonable cause to believe that the student is 
in possession of drugs or drug paraphernalia.  This applies to student vehicles parked on 
school property. Any evidence indicating that a student has violated the law and this 
policy may be seized by the principal building administrator or designee.  

 
Lockers and desks are school property and remain at all times under the control of the 
school; however, students are expected to assume full responsibility for the security of 
their lockers and desks.  Authorized school officials may open and inspect lockers and 
desks when there is reasonable cause to believe that the locker or desk may contain items 
which may be a threat to safety and security.  Such a search may be conducted without a 
search warrant, and without notice or consent. 

 
Students are permitted to park on school premises as a matter of privilege, not of right. 
The District retains the authority to conduct routine patrols of school parking lots and to 



3321-7 (EMT 2012) 

inspect the exteriors of automobiles on school premises. The interiors of vehicles on 
school premises may be inspected whenever an authorized school official has reasonable 
cause to believe that illegal materials are contained inside. Such patrols and inspections 
may be conducted without notice, consent, or a search warrant. 

 
4. Parent Contact: The student’s parent/guardian will be contacted as soon as possible 

following any alleged violation of this policy.  
 
5. Conduct Contract: At the discretion of the building administrator aAny student 

violating this policy must may be required to sign a conduct contract before returning to 
school. Violation of the conduct contract may result in additional disciplinary measures.  

 
6. Drug, Alcohol, and Tobacco and Nicotine Assessment/Treatment: The terms of the 

suspension and/or conduct contract may be modified, at the discretion of the principal 
building administrator or Superintendent, if a student who has violated this policy 
voluntarily completes a drug, alcohol, and tobacco and/or nicotine education course 
and/or undergoes assessment and treatment for drug, alcohol, and tobacco and/or nicotine 
abuse. 

 
 
STUDENTS WITH DISABILITIES 
 
Suspensions and expulsions of students with disabilities as defined by Public Law 94-142 and 
subsequent amendments (Individuals with Disabilities Education Act), Section 504 of the 1973 
Rehabilitation Act, and the Americans with Disabilities Act will follow federal guidelines, 
Chapter 12 of the Idaho Special Education Manual, as well as the provisions of this policy. 
 
IMMUNITY FOR GOOD FAITH IMPLEMENTATION 
 
District employees and independent contractors of the District who implement this policy in 
good faith and with appropriate foundation are immune from civil liability. 
 
INTENTIONAL HARASSMENT 
 
District employees, students, and independent contractors of the District are prohibited from 
using their authority this policy to determine reasonable suspicion solely for the purpose of 
intentionally harassing a student. Using the Harassment authority in such a manner may result in 
disciplinary action against the individual employee or and may be considered a breach of the 
District’s contract with the independent contractor. 
 
NOTICE 
 
Upon adoption of this policy, the Board will provide notice to each student, parent/guardian, or 
custodian at registration. Subsequently, a copy of the policy will be provided to each new 
student, as well as to the parent/guardian or custodian, at the time of initial registration in a 
District school. 



3321-8 (EMT 2012) 

 
♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ 

 
Cross Reference: 3321P Student Drug, Alcohol, and Tobacco Use 
 3340 Corrective Actions and Discipline 
 3370 Search and Seizure  
3370P Search and Seizure 
 3740 Student Expulsion - Denial of Enrollment 
 

Legal Reference:      Idaho Code §18-1502 
 §23-949 
 §23-612 
 §33-205 

 §20-516 
 §33-210 
 §37-2705 
 §37-2732C 

 Drug-Free Schools and Communities Act of 1988 
 PL 100-690 and all subsequent amendments 
 Individuals with Disabilities Education Act  
 PL 94-142 and subsequent amendments 
 Section 504 of the 1973 Rehabilitation Act  
 Americans with Disabilities Act 
 Idaho v. Voss, Idaho Court of Appeals, Nov. 23, 2011 
 
Policy History 
ADOPTED: 12/08/08 
EMT 
REVISED: 07/14/92 

10/12/99 
06/10/13 
08/11/14 

 
 



PROCEDURE TITLE: Student Drug, Alcohol, and Tobacco  PROCEDURE NO: 3321P 
 Use PAGE 1 of 5 

 3321P-1 (TFSD) 

I. NON-DISCIPLINARY PROCEDURES 
 
Non-disciplinary procedures will apply to students who self-refer or who are referred by 
parents, peers, staff, or through other referrals.  Students who voluntarily reveal to professional 
staff members that they have been or are involved in the use of controlled substances/drugs, and 
students who turn in controlled substances/drugs to a staff member for disposal will have the 
confidentiality and anonymity of their communications fully respected.  Individuals who are 
concerned about a student's behavior or possible chemical involvements should contact the 
Student Assistance Specialist and/or school administration. 
 
Controlled substances: voluntary disclosure: 
 
Any student who voluntarily discloses using or being under the influence of any controlled 
substance/drug before he or she is reasonably suspected to be in violation of the law and 
this policy will be provided anonymity to the extent that: 

1. Disclosure is held confidential on a faculty need-to-know basis; 
2. Notification is provided to parent/guardian; and 
3. Available counseling is offered at the school level. 

 
A. Self-Referral 

 
If a student voluntarily requests assistance from school officials with regard to a tobacco, 
alcohol, controlled substance/drug problem, there will be no discipline of the student provided 
that, in the opinion of an administrator and/or other professional staff member, the student is not 
under the influence of or in possession of tobacco, alcohol, or controlled substances/drugs at the 
time he/she requests help: 
 

1. The student will meet with a Student Assistance Specialist or intervention trained 
professional, parent(s), and/or legal guardian(s) to discuss the problems which have 
been identified and develop an appropriate program for student involvement such as: 
a. In-school intervention:  peer support groups, contractual agreements, counseling, 

support teachers. 
b. Out-of-school intervention/treatment:  Assessment by community agency, private 

counseling, outpatient treatment, inpatient treatment.  (Any costs will be borne by 
the parent(s) and/or legal guardian(s).) 

c. Community based information and support:  Alcoholics Anonymous, Narcotics 
Anonymous, education programs through community agencies. 

d. Family-based information and support: Developing Capable People, Parent Project, 
Al-Anon, Ala-Teen, community agency programs, and contractual agreements. 

 
2. Subsequent voluntary requests will automatically result in a referral to the school 

Student Assistance Specialist or intervention trained professional.  A formal chemical 
dependency assessment will be strongly recommended. 

 
3. If the student and/or parent(s) or legal guardian(s) refuse counseling and/or 



 

 3321P-2 (TFSD) 

assessment, they will be reminded that use, possession, distribution, or being under the 
influence of tobacco, alcohol, or controlled substances/drugs at school or off the 
school grounds at a school activity will be subject to school disciplinary measures 
and/or citations issued by law enforcement officials. 

 
B. Staff, Parent, Peer, Other Referral of Student 

 
If a student is exhibiting signs of possible substance use (i.e., increased tardiness, absenteeism, 
lowered class performance, outbursts in class, apathy, increased complaints of illness, etc.), the 
staff member should notify the Student Assistance Specialist or intervention trained 
professional and/or administrator of his or her concerns by filling out a Student Referral form 
documenting the observed behaviors. 
 
Upon referral, the Student Assistance Specialist or intervention trained professional will 
complete an evaluation of the student and make recommendations to the student and to the 
parent/legal guardian.  The student will meet with a Student Assistance Specialist or 
intervention trained professional and parent(s), and/or legal guardian(s) to discuss the problems 
which have been identified and develop an appropriate program for student involvement such 
as: 
 

1. In-school intervention:  peer support groups, contractual agreements, counseling, 
support teachers. 

 
2. Out-of-school intervention/treatment:  assessment by community agency, private 

counseling, outpatient treatment, inpatient treatment.  (Any costs will be borne by the 
parent(s) and/or legal guardian(s).) 

 
3. Community-based information and support:  Alcoholics Anonymous, Narcotics 

Anonymous, education programs through community agencies. 
 

4. Family-based information and support: Developing Capable People, Parent 
Project, Al-Anon, Ala-Teen, community agency programs, and contractual 
agreements. 

 
If the student and/or parent(s)/legal guardian(s) refuse services, refer to I.A.3. 
 
II. DISCIPLINARY PROCEDURES 
 
Controlled substances: referral to law enforcement once a student is reasonably suspected of 
being in violation of the law and this policy regarding controlled substances, regardless of 
any previous voluntary disclosure, the building administration or designee will immediately 
notify the local law enforcement agency and will seek a law enforcement evaluation of the 
student. The evaluation may seek transfer of school custodial responsibility to the state 
department of juvenile corrections. 

 



 

 3321P-3 (TFSD) 

A. Under the Influence and/or in Possession of Alcohol, Tobacco Product, 
Controlled Substance/Drug 

 
1. First Offense: 

 
Step 1: If a student is suspected of being under the influence and/or in possession of 
alcohol, a tobacco product, or a controlled substance/drug when on or near District 
property during school hours or at a school-sponsored activity, the student should be 
immediately escorted by a District employee to the school administrator or designee of 
that activity. Except in the case of an emergency, the student should not be left unattended 
and should not be allowed to leave the school premises. 
 
Step 2: A school administrator or designee should question and record observations of the 
student. If, in the opinion of the administrator or designee, the student is under the influence 
and/or in possession of alcohol, tobacco product, or a controlled substance/drug, continue with 
steps 3-8. 
 
Step 3: A law enforcement official will be notified by a school administrator or designee A copy 
of the observation documentation should be provided to the law enforcement official and a copy 
should be placed in the student’s discipline record.  
 
Step 4: Parent(s) and/or legal guardian(s) will be notified by administration or designee by 
phone with the date recorded or by written notice within a reasonable time limit. 
 
Step 5: Law enforcement should complete an evaluation of the student. If the student is in 
violation of the law, a citation will be issued by a school administrator/official or by a law 
enforcement official. The citation must be witnessed and served by a law enforcement official 
within a reasonable time limit. 
 
Step 6: The student will receive a minimum three-day suspension. If unable to provide in-
school suspension, other appropriate disciplinary action may be taken as per suspension 
policy. 
 

a. The terms of the suspension and/or conduct contract may be modified, at the discretion 
of the principal or Superintendent, if a student who has violated this policy voluntarily 
completes a school-approved drug, alcohol and tobacco education course or support 
group and/or undergoes assessment and treatment for drug, alcohol and tobacco abuse. 
 

Step 7: The school administrator, within a reasonable time limit, will refer the student's name 
to the Student Assistance Specialist or intervention-trained professional who will be 
responsible for implementing the intervention process.  (Step I. B.) 
 
Step 8: The student and parent(s) or legal guardian(s) will meet with a building administrator 
and/or Student Assistance Specialist or intervention-trained professional. A student behavior 



 

 3321P-4 (TFSD) 

contract may be signed by the student, parent(s) or legal guardian(s) and administrator. Copies 
will be made available to the parent(s) or legal guardian(s) and Student Assistance Specialist or 
intervention-trained professional. 
 
The student and parent(s) or legal guardian(s) will be expected to follow the recommendation(s) 
of the Student Assistance Specialist or intervention-trained professional. If the student and/or 
parent(s) or legal guardian(s) refuse counseling and/or assessment, they will be reminded by 
building administration that use, possession, distribution, or being under the influence and/or in 
possession of alcohol, tobacco products, or controlled substances/drugs at school or off the 
school grounds at a school function will be subject to school disciplinary measures and/or 
citations issued by law enforcement officials. 
 

2. Second Offense 
 
Repeat Procedures II A-1.  If it is determined by building administration or law enforcement 
that the presence of said student is a detriment to the safety of the student body or self, the 
administrator has the option of suspending out of school and/or referring the student to the 
Board of Trustees for expulsion. 
 

3. Third and Subsequent Offenses 
 
Repeat Procedures II. A-2.  Upon the third citation being issued (accumulative over grades 6-8 
and again over grades 9-12) by a school administrator/official or law enforcement official or 
witnessed and served by a law enforcement official, the student may be referred by the school 
administrator to the Superintendent and the Board of Trustees for expulsion.  (See Policy 3740) 
 
 B. Distribution of Controlled Substances 
 
If a student is involved in transmitting, trafficking in or distributing alcohol or controlled or 
dangerous substances on school grounds or at any school-sponsored function, law enforcement 
official(s) will be asked to intervene.  If it is determined that the presence of said student is a 
detriment to the safety of the student body or self, there will be a mandatory recommendation 
made by the school administrator to the Superintendent and the Board of Trustees for expulsion. 
 
 C. Non-Students 
 
Law enforcement officials will be notified of non-students on school property using, 
possessing, or distributing a controlled substance/drug. 
 
STUDENTS WITH DISABILITIES: suspensions and expulsions of students with 
disabilities as defined by public law 94-142 and subsequent amendments, (Individuals with 
Disabilities Education Act), section 504 of the 1973 Rehabilitation Act, and the Americans 
with Disabilities Act will follow federal guidelines, Chapter 12 of the Idaho Special Education 
Manual, and the provisions of this policy. 
 



 

 3321P-5 (TFSD) 

IMMUNITY FOR GOOD FAITH IMPLEMENTATION: Intervention-trained specialists 
who implement this policy in good faith and with appropriate foundation are immune from 
civil liability. 
 
INTENTIONAL HARASSMENT: Intervention-trained specialists who intentionally harass a 
student through the misuse of their authority pursuant to this policy are not immune from civil 
liability arising from the wrongful exercise of that authority. The individual may be found guilty 
of a misdemeanor punishable by a fine not to exceed three hundred dollars ($300.) 
 

♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ 

 
Legal Reference: Idaho Code §18-1502, 23-949, and 23-612 
 

Policy History 
APPROVED: 12/08/08 
TFSD 
REVISED: 08/19/13 
 08/11/14 
 09/14/15 



 
 
POLICY TITLE: 

 
Relations with Non-Custodial Parents 
 

 
POLICY NO: 3580   

PAGE 1 of 1 
 

 

 3580-1 (ISBA 2004) 

Whenever possible and legal, the Twin Falls School District recognizes the value of providing 
information to non-custodial parents regarding school purposes and activities pertaining to their 
child.  The district also recognizes that many divorced parents continue to share caregiving and 
custody and that each parent under legal and practical circumstances, should have equal access to 
information regarding their child’s school progress and activities. 

Therefore, upon written request to their child’s school principal, the school will subsequently and 
routinely mail to that parent copies of all school information which is normally sent home with the 
child.  This will include mailings of copies of report cards, and class and school newsletters during 
the school year in which the request is made.  Non-custodial parents and parents with shared 
custody not normally receiving materials from the school may annually request this service. 

Parents, restricted by court order, will not be given access to school information regarding their 
child.  Challenges to a parent’s access to information will be referred to and investigated by the 
Superintendent or designee. Individuals initiating challenges must provide documentation 
regarding court orders prohibiting access to information. 
 

♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ 
 
Legal Reference: Federal Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act of 1974 
 Department of Education 34 C.F.R. Part 99 (May 9, 1980 45FR 30802) 

regs. Implementing 
 FERPA enacted as part of 438 of General Education Provisions Act (20 

U.S.C. 1232G) – parent and student privacy and other rights with respect 
to educational records 

 
Policy History 
ADOPTED: 8/11/14 
ISBA 
REVISED:  



 
 
POLICY TITLE: Absence Without Pay for Non-

Certificated Employees 

 
POLICY NO: 5424   

PAGE 1 of 1 

 

 5424-1 (EMT 1999) 

Payroll deductions for personal absences not specifically authorized in the District’s policies will be 
calculated on the basis of the individual’s prorated salary and may be withheld from paychecks in 
differing amounts as needed for payroll processing. for each day absent. 
 

♦ 
♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ 

 
ADOPTED: 12/08/08 
EMT 
REVISED: 8/11/14 
  6/13/16 



 
 
POLICY TITLE: 

 
New Fees or Increase of Fees 

 
POLICY NO: 7500   

PAGE 1 of 1 
 

 

 7500-1 (ISBA 2007) 

The Superintendent or designee shall periodically review annually fees assessed to determine if 
an increase, decrease, new fee, or other change is necessary.  The Superintendent or designee 
shall report the fee findings to the Board periodically  at least annually.   
 
In the event a fee increase of five percent (5%) or less from the prior fee amount is necessary, the 
Board can review and vote on such a fee increase.  However, in the event a fee increase of 
greater than five percent (5%) from the prior fee amount is necessary, the Board shall hold a 
hearing upon such proposed fee increase at a regular or special meeting of the Board.   
 
The Board shall provide notice of the meeting according to Idaho Code § 63-1311A.  Meeting 
notice shall include the reason for the meeting, i.e. the Board is considering a fee increase that is 
in excess of five percent (5%) of the amount of fees last collected prior to such decision.  If the 
Board is assessing a new fee, the meeting notice shall indicate such. 
 

♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ 
 
Cross Reference: 3440 Student Fees, Fines & Charges 
 7300 Revenues  
 
Legal Reference: I.C. § 63-1311A Advertisement of and Hearing on Fee Increases 
 I.C. § 33-603 Payment of Fees or Returning of Property 
 I.C. § 60-106 Qualifications of Newspapers Printing Legal Notices 
 
Policy History 
ADOPTED: 8/11/14 
ISBA  
REVISED: 8/08/22 


	Policy Update Letter 12 June 2023
	1315 District Planning
	1405 School Board Use of Electronic Mail and Social Media
	3030 Part-time Attendance and Dual Enrollment
	♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦
	REVISED: 10/12/15
	11/12/18
	12/13/21


	3281 Gender Identity and Sexual Orientation
	3340 Corrective Actions and Discipline
	3340P Corrective Actions and Discipline
	3440 Student Fees, Fines, Charges & Return of Property
	5325 Employee Use of Social Media Sites Including Personal Sites
	9605 Facilities Separated by Sex
	Accommodation Upon Request

	3740P Student Expulsion-Denial of Enrollment
	2700P High School Graduation Requirements
	§ 33-6101  Opportunities for College and Career Ready Students

	3285 Relationship Abuse and Sexual Assault Prevention and Response
	3295 Hazing, Harassment, Intimidation, Bullying, Cyber Bullying
	3305 Prohibition of Tobacco Possession and Use
	3321 Student Drug Alcohol and Tobacco Use
	3321P Student Drug  Alcohol and Tobacco Use
	3580 Relations with Non-custodial Parents
	5424 Absence Without Pay for Non-Certificated Employees
	♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦ ♦

	7500 New Fees or Increase of Fees

